MIDDLETON SELECT BOARD
MEETING AGENDA
FULLER MEADOW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
143 SOUTH MAIN STREET, MIDDLETON, MA 01949
TUESDAY, MARCH 18™, 2025
5:00 PM
This meeting is being recorded
5:00 pm 1. Business

Warrant: 2519 and FP 57

Minutes: Open Session, March 4, 2025, Executive Session, March 4, 2025
Town Administrator Updates and Reports

Middleton Municipal Campus Update

5:15 pm 2. Public Comment
5:20 pm 3.  Appointment: Historical Commission: Richard Andreucci
5:25 pm 4. Class I1 2025 License Renewal — Robert’s Motor Group LLC
5:35 pm 5. Seasonal Liquor License Renewals and change of manager
e Ferncroft Country Club DBA Halfway House and Snack Bar
e Ferncroft Country Club DBA Members Lounge
5:45 pm 6. Middleton 300® Committee Charge Review
6:00 pm 7. FY 26 Budget Update and Discussion
i. Municipal Budget
ii. Elementary Budget
iii. Masconomet Budget
6:45 pm 8. Review and Close the May 13", 2025 Annual Town Meeting Warrant
7:05 pm 9. MBTA Communities — Middleton v. Commonwealth, et al — Public Update
7:20 pm 10. Surplus Town Property Regroup Discussion
e Public Input on 4 Lake Street (Fire Station)
o Review updated schedule
7:40 pm 11. Updates & Announcements
7:45 pm 12. Executive Session pursuant to G.L. ¢. 30A, s. 21(a)(3) & (2) to discuss strategy with respect to

collective bargaining negotiation and non-union personnel: Fire Department Staffing

Upcoming Meetings: March 27 Reading of the Warrant
*Spm start = April 1 and 22 Regular Select Board Meetings

The Board reserves the right to consider items on the agenda out of order. Not all items listed may in fact be discussed
and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law.



Draft

MEETING MINUTES
MIDDLETON SELECT BOARD MEETING
FULLER MEADOW SCHOOL, NATHAN MEDIA CENTER
143 SOUTH MAIN STREET, MIDDLETON, MA 01949
March 4, 2025 at S5pm

With a quorum present the Chair called the meeting to order at 5pm and announced the meeting was being recorded.
Select Board present: Rick Kassiotis, Chair; Debbie Carbone, Clerk; Kosta Prentakis; Brian Cresta; Jeff Garber
Also attending: Justin Sultzbach, Town Administrator; Jackie Bresnahan, Assistant Town Administrator; others as noted.

The Board reserves the right to consider items on the agenda out of order. Not all items listed may in fact be discussed and
other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law.

Business
e Warrant: 2518 / March 6, 2025; Payroll: $ 855,000; Bills Payable $ 2MM : FP 56 $ 396,000
The Town Accountant/Finance Director Sarah Wood has reviewed the warrant and requested the Board 's approval. Town
Administrator Sultzbach provided a brief overview of the warrant as presented.
On a motion by Cresta, seconded by Carbone, the Board voted unanimously to approve Warrant 2518 & FP56.

e Minutes: Open Session — OS February 18, 2025; ES February 27, 2025
On a motion by Prentakis, seconded by Garber, the Board voted unanimously to accept the meeting minutes.

¢ Town Administrator Updates & Reports- J. Sultzbach

» The Town received news from the EOHLC that they are not accepting our Action Plan as submitted by their February 13,
2025 deadline. They have determined that Middleton is now out of compliance at this time.

» Town Administration will begin the collective bargaining process with the newly formed Library Union this week.

e TA’s, Finance Committee Members and Select Board Members from Middleton, Topsfield and Boxford have been
meeting to discuss potential impacts from the proposed Masco budget. The group will be attending Masco’s meeting
tomorrow, Wednesday March 5th to offer the Town-side perspective of the budget and associated financial challenges.

s Greenbelt will be in town tomorrow to walk the back portion of the golf course property with members of our team.

e |, Sultzbach refreshed his Fraud Awareness Training through the MCPPO program last week as part of the continuing ed
component of my MCPPQ certification.

» TTU Negotiations are ongoing with collaboration from educators in all three communities, the administration, and Town
Administrators from each town.

e J. Sultzbach walked the Ginger Mill property with Mr. Garber, Commissioner Fitzpatrick, and Planner Burry-Carmer
earlier this week. We continue to explore different opportunities for that site, with full recognition that it comes with
many challenges and obstacles.

» Town Administration is collaborating with Finance Director Wood to identify opportunities for surgical cuts to our FY26
budget. At this time, we have identified up to $100,000 in potential reductions, with more to follow as a good faith effort
to our taxpayers to tighten the belt.

* It is anticipated the need for an FY26 override totaling in at $975,000. This is in response to the ongoing Public Safety
Staffing Crisis we are experiencing in Middleton and would cover 4 additional Firefighter Paramedics and 3 additional
Police officers to our ranks.

e Middleton Municipal Campus Update - J. Sultzbach reported the project continued to move along. Outside
temperatures are monitored specifically during masonry work that heat is appropriate for curing properly and
Coordination with MassDOT for curb cuts and traffic signals has started.

2. Public Comment — There was none.

3. Department Head Update: Review of Fioodplain Overlay Bylaw with Conservation Agent & Planner

Middleton Select Board Meeting Minutes
March 4, 2025 Page 1/3



Draft

Anna Bury Carmer, Planning Director and Kristin Kent, Conservation Agent, were present and spoke on the update of the
Floodplain Overlay Bylaw, which is mandated by FEMA; new maps will go into effect in July. The maps are update for
residents to continue to be eligible for flood insurance. K. Kent gave a brief and general overview of the updates. Permit
review includes if the property is in the Floodplain based on the GIS maps. The Board questioned informing residents who
are infout of the floodplain with the updates; a notice on the town’s website linking to the updated maps.
The Planning Board’s public hearing is March 28 — 7PM at the Fuller Meadow School.
On a motion by Cresta, seconded by Prentakis, the Board voted unanimously the Floodplain overlay Bylaw be
referred to the Planning Board.

4. Comprehensive Zoning Consultant- Review Team Discussion; Select Board liaison — J. Sultzbach noted a working group
was previously proposed to include the Town Planner, Assistant Town Administrator, Town Administrator, and Planning
Board Chair to review the RFQs for a consultant. It was since was agreed a liaison from the Zoning Board, Select Board,
and Building Commissioner be included. D. Carbone will be the Select Board liaison.

5. Recap of Capital Budget Saturday - J. Sultzbach gave an overview of the March 1 Capital Budget meeting, He referred to
the Operating Budget and the potential Masco (Masconomet) override and asked for questions/comments from the
Board. K. Prentakis initiated a discussion regarding the 9.6 percent increase in the Masco budget that creates a need for
an override in all three communities (Middleton, Boxford, Topsfield) and questioned how much of the increase should
Middleton put on an override, considering the elementary school was instructed that everything over 2 % percent increase
goes on an override; he observed a “quirk” in the assessment formula keeps the Masco assessment flat this year, which
equates to a 4 percent Masco budget increase. A lengthy discussion followed on the process for the Tri-Town voting on
the Masco budget. If two towns approve an override for Masco, the third town must accept that vote. The FY27 budget
was mentioned as having a significant increase due to a $ 700,000 decrease of Excess & Deficiency revenue to offset the
budget plus a shift in enrollment assessment may result in another override. The Board agreed budget increases over 2 %2
percent be presented as an override.

The Town operating override includes funding of additional firefighters and police officers. The budget presentations of
the Police and Fire Chiefs regarding the staffing shortage will be highlighted on the town’s website and be on an upcoming
meeting agenda.

6. Review updated list of Articles for the May 13, 2025 Annual Town Meeting (ATM) Warrant — At this time there were
no updates to the warrant. The Town Administrator continues to work with the Town Moderator on the order of Articles.

7. Update from Charter Review Committee on their recommendation to Town Meeting. -Committee members present:
Natalie Lovett, Trevor Currier, George Dow. N. Lovett spoke on the recommendation of the Committee to make changes
to the 1970 Town Charter. The Committee met with Department heads, boards/committees and Town Counsel; many
proposed changes are language clarification and bring the Charter update to date with current practices. The redlined
changed version will be included with the warrant. The Committee decided to present all amendments as one article;
proposed amendments to the article may be submitted to the Moderator prior to the Town Meeting. G. Dow cautioned
amendments to the proposed article may impact another section (s) of the Charter.

The Committee was recognized for their review on the Charter the past three years.

8. Surplus Town Property Regroup -J. Garber recused himself from this agenda item as an abutter to 65 N. Main Street.

e Public input on 65 N. Main Street (Police Station)

e Review of proposal for appraisal

e Review updated schedule: March 18 -Fire Station, 4 Lake Street ; April 1 — Council on Aging, 38 Maple Street. Future
agenda topics: Memorial Hall; Locust Street parcel; 40 School Street (glue factory)

B. Cresta began this discussion opining it does not make sense for the Town to hold on to this property citing it needs

significant updating and there is no town land abutting the property. The Town Administrator office is tracking social

media comments. An appraisal estimate (for highest & best use) was received by Minco Corporation for $2,800, to be

available to the town no later than mid-April, in time for an article to sell the property to be on the ATM.

Associated costs (engineering, heat, fencing, etc) and funding options will be considered at a future meeting.

Middleton Select Board Meeting Minutes
March 4, 2025 Page 2/3



Draft

On a motion by Cresta, seconded by Carbone, the Board voted unanimously to approve the expenditure of 52,800
to perform the required appraisal of the police station property, 65 N. Main Street for its fullest and greatest use.

J. Garber returned to the meeting.

9. Review correspondence regarding additional Cell Tower needs in Town — J. Sultzbach presented the Board with a
proposal from Airosmith on a cell tower in town. J. Bresnahan will follow up on potential parcels, pending the Board'’s
support. This is a third party soliciting sites to sell to i.e. Verizon; this would be a revenue source for the town and provide
service to the town. The Board was initially supportive of continuing discussions on this matter.

10. Review of updated vehicle use policy — This was last updated/adopted in 2002. Sharon Banbridge was recognized for
providing a comprehensive updated version for consideration. Many of the forms in the policy are required by MIIA
(Massachusetts Interlocal Insurance Association); by making this a town policy, the Town will receive reward credits from

MIAA. Sara Wood was recognized for her work handling claims.
On a motion by Cresta, seconded by Prentakis, the Board voted unanimously to approve the updated Vehicle Use

Policy as proposed.

11. Masco Budget — Town Update: this was addressed earlier in the meeting under budget review and passed over.

12. Updates & Announcements
A list of board & committee openings were announced: these are listed on the town’s website.

13. Executive Session 6:42pm: On a motion by Cresta, seconded by Prentakis, the Board voted unanimously by roll call to
enter into Executive Session, pursuant to G.L. .c 30A, .s 21(a)(3) &(2) to discuss strategy with respect to collective
bargaining negotiation and non-union personnel: Fire Department Staffing and not return to open session but adjourn
directly from executive session.

Upcoming Select Board Meetings:
e Regular Select Board meetings at 5pm : March 18; April 1 & 22
e Reading of the Warrant — March 27

Documents either distributed to the Select Board before the meeting, in a packet, or at the meeting:
e Warrant 2515 & Facility Project 52

e  Minutes: OS February 18, 2025; ES January 27, 2025

e Floodplain Overlay District Proposed Changes 2 .25.25; Section 8.0 — Special District Regulations
e Email: RFQ- Middleton Zoning Bylaw Review Project 2.27.25

e ATM Preliminary List

e Proposed Changes to Town Charter 2.20.25

e Surplus Property Public Forum Series; overview2.28.25

o Airosmith Development Certified Mail: Re Proposed Cell Tower Lease on Town Property Locations 2.13.25
s Vehicle Use Policy (Draft); Town of Middleton Vehicle Use Handbook 5.28.2002

e Tri Town 10 Year Analysis; N. S Essex Tech 10 Year Analysis; Masconomet 10 Year Analysis

Adjournment: The Board voted unanimously by roll call to adjourn at 7:23 pm.

Respectfully submitted by
Catherine E. Tinsley
Catherine Tinsley, Recording Secretary Debbie Carbone, Clerk

Middleton Select Board Meeting Minutes
March 4, 2025 Page 3/3



Town of Middleton
Memorial Hall
48 South Main Street
Middleton, Massachusetts
01949-2253
978-777-3617

www.middletonma.gov

TOWN OF MIDDLETON
TALENT BANK APPLICATION

The Select Board maintains a Talent Bank of names of citizens of Middleton willing to serve on boards,
commissions and committees. Names in this file are available for use by all Town Departments.

5 ,
Name: /f: e har ﬁé\;\; DIPELCS |\ Telephone:
Address: _ 77 Kouwriele LANE Celiphone: L7437 -5 757/
Email Address: __ P ER MDRE | §4ISIAHNCoun

Occupation: Bezmtd

Background Experience: __ S ¢h oo J Tene Her j Co Mp tv “ec ‘el s
Vol =\* CliL ‘ 5 etk
Begrd A L b ; o~

| amO?nterestgﬁx‘gg‘vmg%‘ﬁ %\ér? 'b/ogr&s{z‘ a%d Cgtr’n't’r—nviﬁé_‘es %él%d in/toﬂg?gﬂo ng%}(eas:

(Please check all that apply. The Board encourages you to attach a recent resume if available.)

(B St

Board of Health Recreation Commission
Council on Aging R Historical Commission
Finance Committee Planning Board
Zoning Board of Appeals Industrial Commercial Development Review Committee
Conservation Commission Zoning Bylaw Review Committee
Cultural Council Other:
Other: Other:
Amount of Time Available: S G Ay /- dte e g e el
Are you available year round for committee meetings? Yes j No
If not, when are you available?
Winter Spring Summer _____ Autumn

Are there any Boards or Committees in which you are particularly interested?
HisTopicn  Conuisssnn

/f//{ afd) P -f:’*/f A0 pes | 3(5(Joas”

Signature a Date
Please submit all responses to the Town Administrator's Office via the mailing address above or via email at:
deb.mahoney@middletonma.gov

Revised 9/28/23



TOWN OF MIDDLETON LICENSE 2024 RENEWAL FORM FOR
AUCTIONEER, CLASS I, CLASS II, CLASS II, GASOLINE PUMPS,
GOLF, LIVERY AND PRECIOUS METALS

Please use this form to obtain your license renewal. Please pay all license fees no later than Saturday.
November 30. 2024, License fees shall be paid by cashier’s check or bank check or online.

(Town of Middleton - Select Board)

All license fees must be received no later than November 30, 2024 in order to have your license
renewed for January 1, 2025.

Please select the appropriate licenses below and total your amount due:

TYPE OF LICENSE QUANTITY LICENSE FEE AMOUNT DUE

Amusement Machines (per machine) - X $35.00 =
Auctioneer - $45.00
Class I $200.00
Class II y | $200.00 ~ 7400.00
Class ITI _ $200.00 -
Gas License (per nozzle) X  §45.00 = -
Golf Course/Driving Range o $100.00 B
Livery License - $100.00 o

$50.00 12 vehicle;

# Vehicles - $25.00 each

additional vehicle

Precious Metals B $50.00
Total Amount Due by
November 30, 2024 20 0.00

Business Name: ‘LL__O‘Q &S Yovol G 94

Manager Name: gz&fﬁédz M/éz g_/E!ignature:

Phone Number ~ Email Address:

H{E@Envg Jﬁc—a‘h’[/(/(fﬂ.‘?ﬁé;éoéé@/‘(/auoﬂwq

[
2029

(% 208\ $2m.00 58




Town of Middleton, Massachusetts
Revenue Enforcement and Protection Certification (REAP)

Pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 62C, Section 49A, I hereby
certify under the penalties of perjury that I to my best knowledge and belief, have
filed all State tax returns and paid all state taxes required by law.

Name of Company:_Rop#f¥s WA0¥Or G0l

Address: 5 /:;E-/:M 3, LR -¢i’;_7

Title of Person Signing: ,/?;bL 27 é‘r //, UL /? ff’// ﬂ LH /é Ay.):-
Signature of Individual or Corporate Name: 7/// /. %‘2/{' 4 6 7 /7 LLC
Printed Name of Above: //A? 7 /D /7/;44//1/ /J”

Contact Telephone Number: ?/ ZF =/ ~6000)

Date: ?/ sg:' /§7ﬂ2 S

Social Security Number or Federal Identification Number: A L O-PPES

Email Address:

37’__— ﬁmkﬁﬂy_@—@?é(ﬁ} c/oved. Cf/’l{ -

DECE IVE

MAREH 6
2075
0y 26 708\ 8 500,004

Revised 10/2023



SeeSona | Ferac roby |
Hofevay Yiodse Gnd Snock Bar &b Femnlott Coum&fy T2

Town of Middleton
Select Board
48 South Main Street
Middleton, MA 01949

Please use this form to obtain your license renewal. Please remit a properly signed State Tax Form and pay all
license fees no later than Fridav, March 31, 2025. License fees shall be paid by either cashier’s check or bank
check.

All license fees must be received in this office no later than March 31, 2025 in order to have your license renewed
for the season.

SEASONAL ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE LICENSE RENEWAL FORM FOR 2025

TYPE OF LICENSE LICENSEFEE AMOUNT DUE
Club License . I $500.00 -
Seasonal All Alcohol Restaurant 1 $2,000.00 $2,000.00
All Alcohol Inn Holder - $2,500.00 -
All Alcohol Package Store $2,000.00 -
Beer & Wine Restaurant R $2,000.00 o
Beer & Wine Package Store - $1,500.00 -
Amusement Machines _ - $100.00
Common Victualler 1 $100.00 - $100.00
Juke Box $35.00 S
Entertainment 1 $10.00 $10.00
Golf License o $100.00 S -
Total Amount Due $2,110.00 -
By March 31, 2025
Business Name: Halfway House Snack Bar at Ferncroft Country Club
Business Manager Name: = E @ E ﬂ V E N ‘
Phone Number: _ A _ S 2 R D Ui
. -. - MAR -6 RECD
Fmail et e . 000 9oeh
el NU330.00 5%




Commonwealth Of Massachusetts
Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission

Jean M. Lorizio, Esq.
Commission Chairman

2025
Retail License Renewal

License Number: 00034-RS-0704 Municipality: MIDDLETON

License Name :  SD Management Group LLC License Class: Seasonal

DBA : Halfway House Snack Bar License Type: Restaurant

Premise Address: 8-10 Village Road Middleton, MA 01949 License Category: All Alcoholic Beverages
Manager: aBgogerake LI AlexaNDee  LEuss

| hereby certify and swear under penalties of perjury that:

1.1 am authorized to sign this renewal pursuant to M.G.L. Chapter 138;
2. The renewed license is of the same class, type, category as listed above;
3, The licensee has complied with all laws of the Commonweaith relating to taxes; and

4, The premises are now open for business (if not, explain below).

3/e]25

v

Signature date
D. L. %qles g Mowa( 2
Printed Name Title (j

Additional information:

Please sign this form only in the month of March and return to your Local Licensing Authority.

"Q_ TELEPHONE: (617)727-3040 FAX: (617)727-1268 httpJ/www.mass.gov/abece



DTEDESCHI
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

3/6/2025 |
|

FERNHOL-01

i
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE 1SSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. |

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the poficy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER - | §2u1acT Paulajean Porter
Acrisure Insurance Partners Services of NY, LLC

90 S. Ridge Street
Rye Brook, NY 10573

PHONE
|G, No, Ext):
Ak ss, paporter@acrisure.com

| Fax
(AJC, No):

N INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE _ NAICE
, _ | mnsurer A : Selective Insurance Company of America 12572
INSURED | INsurer 8 ; Selective Insurance Company of South Carolina 119253
Ferncroft Holdings LLC | nsurer ¢ : Hartford Fire Insurance Company 19682
10 Village Road INBURER D.:
Middleton, MA 01949 [ "y - —
| INSURERE : - - )
| - ——————————— | INSURERF: - ( |
COVERAGES _CERTIFICATE NUMBER: ) _REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT,

HAVE BEEN IS_SUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIbD

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

TR TYPE OF INSURANCE ADOUSUBR . eoucvummer | GRHSASV | diobRYeY) _ umms _|
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY [ ] i EACH OGGURRENCE s 1,000,000
| | cLamS-MADE OCCUR |5 2574248 | 173012025 | 1/30/2026 DA T R e rza) | 1,000,000
o | MED EXP (Any one gerson) _§ 15,000
- - — PERSONAL & ADV INJURY ___ & 1,000,000
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: |GENERALAGGREGATE __|§ 3,000,000
X poucy E, B Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG 1 § 3,00Q,000
. OTHER: S — | - e S —
B liuromosu.z LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT 3 ¢ 1,0(10(),00()]I
X anvauto A 9109745 1/30/2025 | 1/30/2026  BODILY INJURY |Per cerson) J s |
OWNED SCHEDULED = — |
| AUTOS ONLY, AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident:| $ 1
"PROPI MAGE ' - —
XIIJRTEODS ONLY NSTN&%‘%%EQ _.P_erapeqijenl[.m _G i o
| S I — — - 5 |
A |X umeretatne | X |occur EacHoccurrence s 10,000,000
|  exceEssuaB CLAIMS-MADE S 2574246 1/30/2025 = 1/30/2026 |, .o are $ 10,000,000
B Ioep X |retenmons 10,000 - | s -
C LTSRS X[Bure |

{ ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE s 16WBCAWONNO 13012025  1/30/2026 ¢\ .xop accinENT $ 1,000,000
{QFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? NiA A T 1,000,000

i{Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE § s
ﬁlf yes, describe under S| | TN 4.000,000

{ DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below ! 3 E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § Dedast)
A ‘Liquor Liability S 2574246 1/30/2025 1/30/2026 :Each Occurrence 1,000,000

i

DESCRIPTION OF GPERATIONS / LOCATIONS f VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space Is required)
RE: Renewal of MA Liquor License.;

'CERTIFICATE HOLDER | CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

Town of Middletown ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

48 South Main Street
Middletown, MA 01949 U —— ===
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
I - _ f = . _
ACORD 25 {2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



TOWN OF MIDDLETON
ANNUAL LICENSE AFFIDAVIT STATUS
OF EMPLOYEE TRAINING FOR SERVING OR SELLING ALCOHOL

Name of Licensee: F"Eﬁ‘NC/RDF.T CJOU NTL‘;;’ Cuvid
Address: 2 -\D NiLLAae C K.D

1. Number of employees serving alcohol

2. Name of all employees who have TIPS/ServSafe training and training expiration date of
certificate.
(Please submit copies of training certificates for all employees).

Employee Name: Date of Certificate
Certification: Expiration Date:
Aunn }‘/osc_,ei - 733 TAEY
Saeatt Gonyen 3.8.93 3 7.26
Broore Callaran 5.358 23 5.8/l
ColleenN RogiTarrs /01523 1014 .34
S BA 9. 6- 38 Q426

(Please us an additional sheet if necessary to list all names)

Revised 9/2023



- e e e e T TR

- o CERTIFIED
R eﬂPSOﬁ@rsfﬂﬁ#}?J
’ qued.10!1ﬁzb ?(‘v (Explns 10/46/2026

m 5842356 F"’?-"ﬁ;?_..ﬁ e
e S g,

Famgro W}Y Oﬁlﬁ iddieton ey f.;”*f;% w
- 10 Village Rd" @ Lf’? =
. Middlston, MA0194 ¥21 ﬁqg

: é -J
f%
o e J




ey ~

A \JA : [ . FRANEZI008- MO 8 WSegEony. ;
.l.ll..u...ﬂ-o K ST Doy R/t peeny
& _

W)y O wEE

@ ;) aIIIILUID

1

- T THERIAST R T T = T - 2

wod buluwien0agmmm | SEZTIBEELE | YLBL XL UNSNY | GOE 2UNS "®H2T 941 LD BZELY §O0S

378VH3ISNVYL-NON Si TIVHALHID SIHL

BIEMLIS [IBRING

£66198820000-NO = A1 QZOZ/LSO [Z_ = EZ0Z/Z2/50

=z 00€
¥\ | =4 aieQg uonesndxy © eleg uonsdwoy) sinay

burure1], 18A19S J0YOO[V 3STWAL]-UQ SJLL

10§ 21EILUBO S PAPIEME S|

TeTe[e) oo

18U} SaIIBd Sy}

NOLLITdAO0D 30 ALVOIJLIYNID

| &

- DNINIVIL




A\y il ., bl 1 ~ t ~ - pp - . .«

Serving Alcohol |~
Is proud to present this ceriificale to QEQWN@
Sarah Gonyea ALCOHOL

g " for successiul completion of the online course w

Massachusetts Alcohol Seller-Server Course

Verify online at
| Pursusnito Massachusstis Genetal Law Chapler 138 servingalcohol.com
L pERSONS COMPLETING THIS COURSE HAVE AGREED TO EXECUTE THE
W FOLLOWING POUIGIES TO THE BEGT OF THER ABLITIES. Verification Code
| 1 GARD ANY PEASON 35 YEARS OF AGE OR YOUNGER bu30B191EH
+ QBSEAVE AND REPOAT ANY GUSTOMER SHOWING BIGNE OF
| POSSIBLE IMPAIRED BEKAVIOR TO MANAGEMENT Date Issued
2 1 RESPOND IMMEDIATELY TO ANY POSSIOLE PROBLEM SITUATION
|+ DETERMINE THE PEOPLE ENTERING THE PREMIGES TO CONSUME Mar 8th, 2023
SN ALCOHOL ARE OF LEGAL ALGOHCL DRINGNG AGE AND RECARD THEM . '
5" IF THERE 18 ANY OUESTION ABOUT THEIR AGE
ENSURE A PERSON MATCHES THEIR YALIDLEGAL IOENTIFICATION VALIO FOR 3_YEARS

== =

T E:

N2 NN N NG NN

=7



spmugen AN WEN

LB BE-O0EUOU :
NAE ey \2 e _ TALXT0E0000-N0 2 etguanty
hn-!,ﬂ..r %L ] STty IR LT g
s

QIFAXLYID

¢
—

EEnSIaty |~ - METECIRWRr: .~y

WO GUINILILOAE MMM | DELBL X1 'UnENY | Q0L 3UNS “Aeamyieg wiog obpug 5059

J18VYIISNVYYI-NON ST 313U 83T SIHL

TELISZOE0000~NO (—.~ 9Z0Z/o0/1t £Zor/ Lo ; o0t
g8y —2f 1 aeQuones axw © 3leg uonajdwon sinal

burure1], OARS [0Y0[Y 3STHIDI]-UQ SALL

Joj 83OLILIAD SIY} pApIEME St

IS[SSO euauy

141 SO0 SIy |

NOILLITTINOD J0 ALVIIIIIYID

ANWINOD DHINIVILOE v
oz_z_<= -'m

s




Seofno) Tty

MembaS  Lounge G Fern

Crofy COLW\V\j clob

Town of Middleton
Select Board
48 South Main Street
Middleton, MA 01949

Please use this form to obtain your license renewal. Please remit a properly signed State Tax Form and pay all
Ycense fees no later than Friday, Mareh 31, 2025. License fees shall be paid by either cashier’s check or bank

check.

Al license fees must be received in this office no later than March 31, 2025 in order to have your license renewed

for the season.

SEASONAL ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE LICENSE RENEWAL FORM FOR 2025

TYPE OF LICENSE

Club License

Seasonal All Alcohol Restaurant
All Alcohol Inn Holder

All Alcohol Package Store
Beer & Wine Restaurant
Beer & Wine Package Store
Amusement Machines
Common Victualler

Juke Box

Entertainment

Golf License

Total Amount Due
By March 31, 2025

Business Name:

LICENSE FEE AMOUNT DUE

$500.00

1 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

$2,500.00

$2,000.00
$2,000.00
$1,500.00
$100.00

1 $100.00 $100.00

$35.00
1 $10.00 $10.00

$100.00

$2,110.00

Members Lounge at Ferncroft Country Club

Business Manager Name:

Phone Number:

Email:

N O ' . MAR -6 RECD

140,00 Q035
Oy ¥ \P3l $420.00 ~§F




Commonwealth Of Massachusetts
Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission

Jean M. Lorizio, Esq.
Commission Chairman

2025
Retail License Renewal

License Number: 00033-RS-0704 Municipality: MIDDLETON

License Name:  SD Management Group LLC License Class: Seasonal

License Type: Restaurant

DBA : Members Lounge
Premise Address: 8-10 Village Road Middleton, MA 01949 License Category: All Alcoholic Beverages
Manager: Ffaeqgeimaks P Hu v ALE XANDEE LEI25.

I hereby certify and swear under penalties of perjury that:

1. 1 am authorized to sign this renewal pursuant to M.G.L. Chapter 138;
2. The renewed license is of the same class, type, category as listed above;
3. The licensee has complied with all laws of the Commonwealth relating to taxes; and

4. The firemises are now open for business (if not, explain below).

3/6)25

Signature Date
N. 8. Quues Uz Manaqoe .
Printed Name Title o

Additional Information:

Please sign this form only in the month of March and return to your Local Licensing Authority.

IQ TELEPHONE: (617)727-3040 FAX: (617)727-1258 http/iwww.mass.gov/abee



N FERNHOL-01 DTEDESCHI
ACCRD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE | Mo

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

\MPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. |

I SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
__this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).
PRODUCER ACT Paulajean Porter
Acrisure Insurance Partners Services of NY,LLC '

90 S. Ridge Street
Rye Brook, NY 10573

| PHONE [ FAX
|_|AJC, No, Ext): _{AIC, Noj:

Eotikss. paporter@acrisure.com

| | __INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE L nNaIcH
_ | insurer A : Selective Insurance Company of America _ [12572
INSURED INSURER B : Selective Insurance Company of South Carolina _ 19259
Ferncroft Holdings LLC | nsurer ¢ : Hartford Fire Insurance Company 19682
10 Village Road INSURER D :
Middleton, MA 01949 [ 1
| INSURERE :_ - =
— - | INSURERF: _ e S | ——
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: . = REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH

RT  TYPEOFINSURANCE A0 s pocvumeer | GONERSTE | AERBATY, uwms |
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY | ' | EACH OCCURRENCE 5 1,000,000
| T cuamsmane occlR | S 2574246 | 173012025 | 113012026 | PREGREIGET  vce) 5 1,000,000
I N _ I | MED EXP (Anyone person) | $ - 15_’000
_ ] I | PERSONAL & ADVINJURY | $ 1,000,000
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: [ | | GENERAL AGGREGATE r $ 3,000,000
X | poLicy RO Loc | | PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § 3,000,000
. OTHER. = 1 | S — = | Se— —_—— e P
8  automoBiLE LIABILITY GOMBIEDSINGLELMIT |5 1,000,000
X | anv auto A 9109745 1/30/2025 1/30/2026 | BODILY INJURY (Per person)_ | $
OWNED SCHEDULED | ¥ P |
| AUTOS ONLY AUTOS | BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
PROPERTY DAMAGE
| WRowy | NOX Y _MIA 3 =—
N WP [ — | Y I —= — I I | | === Tl
A X |umereraums | X | occur | EACH OCCURRENCE s 10,000,000
EXCESS LIAB | CLAMS-MADE S 2574246 1/30/2025 @ 1/30/2026 AGGREGATE N 10,000.000_
peo | X | rerenions 10,000 |l I R ) - $ ]
C  WORKERS COMPENSATION X | PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS® LIABILITY |Alstaryre | IER |
Y
Y PROPRETORPARTNEREXECUTHE TL 16WBCAWONNO 113012025  1/30/2026 | | C.o0: scoEnT s 1,000,000
QEFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? D NJA | o | 1,000,000
fflaand:tory. b: ng EL DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEEI $ kit
, descrl
i} _'QE?CBOPTION%F%‘PERATIONEM_V | | | EL DISEASE-POLICYLMIT |8 1,000,000
A Liguor Liability S 2574246 1/30/2025 = 1/30/2026 Each Occurrence 1,000,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERA_TIONS 1 LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if mor.e space i requlr;) o
RE: Renswal of MA Liquor License.;

'CERTIFICATE HOLDER
|

Town of Middletown
48 South Main Street
Middletown, MA 01949

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

_CANCELLATION
|

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELWERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

[B-

 ©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. Al rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



TOWN OF MIDDLETON
ANNUAL LICENSE AFFIDAVIT STATUS

OF EMPLOYEE TRAINING FOR SERVING OR SELLING ALCOHOL

Name of Licensee:

Address:

]C_%P—NORDFT (" punTiesy Cauvhd
2-\0 Nhiwree, By

1. Number of employees serving alcohol

2. Name of all employees who have TIPS/ServSafe training and training expiration date of

certificate.

(Please submit copies of training certificates for all employees).

Employee Name:

AA/NH )\/ost,&?fw
|
Saeni (Gonyen

Beoore Callnany
ColleanN RosiTairs

S PA

Date of
Certification:

7393
3-8:-43
5-88: 33
10.15 .23

9.5- 38

(Please us an additional sheet if necessary to list all names)

Certificate
Expiration Date:

Il b
3 7 26
5.8 b
10- 1% .3
AU -2l

Revised 9/2023



e,
“i

{ ﬂ} | TIPS, Oﬂ@mﬁﬁﬂp

luuod* 161 B2t

ID# 5842368

,';.._

'ﬁo

10 Village R}
-~ Middleton, MA' 019 ﬁ
&

e

Femgrof @@5% fﬁ%ﬁdﬂtemn

*’éz

s

" CERTIFIED

%

e Expires: 1011612025
‘3’ 5 3




Aoy

GIIJILHTD

- . ﬂ&bh&«l*u. o— caen - - - -

CEETIEIO0r N SV

T T EuwHIY % T

wWod buIeNgE MMM | SOTTIBE'ELE | 97LBL XL WISAY | GOC NG "ave] AU uD e2ey 00T

J78VYIISNVYL-NON Si 3LYIILH3T SiHL

£66198820000-NO =1 9z02/T2/80 % ¢ £202/22/50 00
smwyneg (=2 a1qQ uoptendx3 © SlEguUORatwe] unay

Huruie1], 1DAIDG [OYOOTY ISTALI-UD SJLL

10} BUSIYIUBI SIY) PAPIEME 5}

wehe[e.) 93001y -

18y} SISy

NOLLITTINOI 30 ZLVIILILIYID

ANWNOD HNVRION ¥ ' B
S~ 5 .._
- ONINIVEL LI

il

P




gﬁ\ﬂ"u‘sv .JZ-??:?: U//‘E'?-: ,,'/;-;\: 1/("":\_' 'I{;.'_}* f,%g\\..h”///
o
T :
Q. : A 1 ; :
Serving Alcohol ‘?f‘“‘?} 5
\ial S A
Is proud lo present this certificate to QEE@W NG | |
Sarah Gonyea ALCOHOL B §
for succasstul completion of the online course "n:%%j :
Massachusetts Alcohol Seller-Server Course
. Verify online at
Pursuant to Massachussiis General Law Chapler 138 servingalcohol.com
| PEMSONS COMPLETNG TS counse, WAVE AGREED 10 DXECUTE T Verification Code 7
* CARD ANY PERSON 35 YEARS OF AGE OR YOUNGER buSOB191EH
+ GASERVE AND REPORT ANY CUSTOMER BHOWING BXING OF
POSSIBLE IMPAIRED BEHAVIOR TO LANAGEMENT Date Issusd
+ RESPOND MNEDIATELY TO ANY POSIIBLE PROBLEM SITUATION
* DETERMINE THE PEOPLE ENTERING THE PREMISES TO CONSUME Mar 8th, 2023
O e ki
Je k | ENSURE A PERSON MATGHES THEIR VALID LEGAL IOENTIFICATION VALID FOR 3 YEARS

%. i 4= .
% 1-_—__ -.4.;_3 \a_} .».‘3; : = \c?;' . ‘.;;,r? :
Il 2 iNE NS N2 NN N A

L )



.“ LLVEREWOUg AuoYy :
__ J\...M '8 ﬁ , s s |
| g @ :

; . gITdILYAD

/'I-' —— e 01 gt P

¢

B =g i < - T CSERTT A T

WO OUINILIIQAL MMM | OELBL XL UnSNY | O0L 3LING "Aesuued wiod abpug 4059

J71aVHIASNYHI-NON ST 31VILHLH3D SIHL

. asnaepbis IR0

Z6L1SZ0E0000-NO {~~ 9202/90/11 ﬂ EZOZ/L0NT 1]4) 5
® Rdjuen) —4 m aeguoneydxy 531 ¢ silequonmdwon ; SUNOH

burare1] oAISS JOYOIY SSTUISIJ-UQ SALL

10} @J2OYIMIAD SIY) PAPIEME St

TS[SSOY euuy

183 SOYNIBD SIY |

NOLLITANOD J0 ALVIIILINID

AHWINGD DNINIILON ¥ \%ld -
-, !

-ONINIVIL

L8



OFFICE OF THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR
Town of Middleton
Memorial Hall
48 South Main Street
Middleton, MA 01949-2253
978-777-3617
www. middletonma.gov

TO: Select Board

FROM: Town Administration

RE: 300" Anniversary Committee Charge
DATE: 3/13/2025

As you know, 2028 marks the Town’s 300™ Anniversary since our original incorporation in
1728. The Board has expressed interest in beginning to prepare for this important celebration. A
key element of those initial preparations involves creating a committee to undertake the work
associated with planning for these events, appointing residents to serve on the committee, and
then supporting their efforts. To that end, here is a proposed charge for the committee:

The 300" Anniversary Committee shall be comprised of up to nine members, serving three-year
terms, and subject to reappointment by the Select Board. The Committee will focus on the
following functions:

. Conduct outreach to the community to ask for suggested events that residents
would be interested in attending.
. Partner with local businesses, community organizations, non-profits, and Town

departments to develop events that appeal to all ages and encourage the greatest
participation of all Middleton residents and friends.

. Plan and coordinate a series of events for the recreational, educational, and
cultural benefit of the community that will serve to commemorate Middleton’s
heritage and will lead to greater knowledge and appreciation of our history and

our future.
. Develop a strategy to fundraise for the Anniversary events.
. Create a master calendar of events and develop marketing materials to

disseminate information about the events hosted by the 300™ Anniversary
Committee, its partners, and friends of Middleton.

. Encourage and support other community organizations to host events that
highlight their group’s mission and their connections to the history of Middleton.



TOWN OF MIDDLETON
OFFICE OF THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR

48 South Main Street, Middleton, MA 01949

Telephone (978) 777-3617
justin.sultzbach@middletonma.gov

TO: Select Board and Finance Committee

FROM: Town Finance and Administration

DATE: March 17, 2025

RE: Fiscal Year 2026 Operating and Capital Budget Updates

Thank you to the Select Board and Finance Committee for their active participation and collaboration
thus far in the budget process, particularly on Operating and Capital Budget Saturdays. This memo
serves as an update on changes since March 1. Our next joint meeting will be the Reading of the
Warrant/Budget Hearing on Thursday, March 27% at 6:00 pm at the Fuller Meadow Library.

Status of outstanding items:

Town expenditures - $150,000 in cuts to Town Departmental salary and expense budgets based
on a surgical analysis by the Finance Director and Town Administration. All cuts have been
reviewed with and supported by department heads.

Town revenue — increases identified on Capital Budget Saturday have been updated. We
continue to monitor trends including current year actuals, although are not expecting changes.
Masconomet Regional School District — The Committee continues to consider different
funding scenarios, with a vote scheduled for 3/19.

Middleton Elementary — updated as of School Committee on 3/3; reflective of changes
reviewed on Capital Budget Saturday; next meeting 4/7.

Essex North Shore — no anticipated changes.

Reductions made to operating budget based on increase to CPC budget.

We are expecting a request to authorize to borrow in FY26 for the Fire Truck and Fuller
Meadow roof, with a Debt Exclusion ballot questions expected for those two items in FY27.
This would allow us to get answers on 3 factors, 1. If we receive the grant for the truck, 2. The
true cost of the Fuller Meadow roof, 3. The true savings from municipal campus to offset any
increases from the two proposed debt exclusions. (~$4.2 Million would net 0, current at $3.5).

Next Steps:

The FY 26 Operating Budget remains at a deficit of $27,000, based on the following conditions:

Guidance for Middleton Elementary Schools of 2.5% plus health insurance in the levy limit
budget, all other increases funded through Operating Override

Recommendation of the Administration and Finance team for funding Middleton’s share of the
Masconomet Regional Budget — level funded in the levy limit budget (which represents a 4.1%




TOWN OF MIDDLETON
OFFICE OF THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR

48 South Main Street, Middleton, MA 01949

Telephone (978) 777-3617
justin.sultzbach@middletonma.gov

overall budget increase for the district over last year). Any additional balance of the increase
being funded by an Operating Override in Middleton

Assumes use of half of the existing levy capacity.

Projecting a ~$1,000,000 Deficit for FY27 (carrying 20% increase for Health Insurance)




MAY 13, 2025 ANNUAL TOWN MEETING

PRELIMINARY LIST
Art Page
# #
Current & Prior Year Financial Articles
1. Hear Committee Reports
2. Pay Bills of Prior Fiscal Years
3. Snow and Ice Deficit
FY2026 Financial Articles
4. Approve FY2026 Compensation for Elected Officials
5. FY2026 Omnibus Budget
6. FY2026 Public Safety Operating Budget Override
7. FY2026 Elementary School Operating Budget Override
8. FY2026 Masconomet Regional Operating Budget Override
9. FY2026 Community Preservation Budget - Debt Service, Projects, Expenses
10. | FY2026 Community Preservation Budget - New Projects
11. | Authorize FY2026 Revolving Fund Spending Limits
12. | FY2026 South Essex Sewerage District Enterprise Budget
13. | FY2026 Water Enterprise Budget
14. | Accept Sum from Middleton Electric Light Department (MELD)
15. | Transfers to Reserve Accounts
16. | FY2026 Capital Budget
17. | Masconomet Regional Capital Request
18. | Fuller Meadow Roof Construction Debt Capital Request
19. | Middleton 300" Committee Appropriation
Citizen Petitions, Bylaw Adoptions, & Real Property
20. | Charter Review Recommendations
21. | Floodplain Zoning Bylaw
22. | Surplus Town Properties — Police Station

23.

Conservation Restriction for 105 S Main Street




MIDDLETON SELECT BOARD
Town of Middleton
48 South Main Street
Middleton, Massachusetts
01949-2253
978-777-3617
www.middletonma.gov

-FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE-

March 14, 2025
Dear Middleton Resident,

Since signed into law, the MBTA Communities Act has created a lot of division in our small
community. The local discourse on this topic has generated some thoughtful conversations. We don’t
only hear the anger and frustration about this state overreach, we share it.

In Middleton, we are putting our collective efforts into leading on this issue. The Select Board
has resisted the urge to use our community’s time, effort - and your taxpayer dollars - on throwing
legal punches that look good but have no shot at landing. We are all angry at the position the
Commonwealth has put us in, and are committed to using our resources not on short term gains, but
rather pushing for a change in circumstances that gives us a real chance at succeeding in the long term.

That change has arrived. February 21, 2025 correspondence from the Auditor of the
Commonwealth (attached) has determined that, “the provisions of the MBTA Communities Act
impose an unfunded mandate within the meaning of the Local Mandate Law.” The Middleton Select
Board met in response to this news in Executive Session on Thursday, February 27, 2025 and voted
unanimously to file Middleton v. Commonwealth, et al to challenge the following points:

1. Middleton cannot be held to this law because it is an unfunded mandate.

2. Middieton is not an adjacent community as we do not border any town that has MBTA service.

3. The Town has been awarded a sizeable grant that was conditioned on compliance with the
MBTA law. If the statute cannot be applied to the Town, we request an injunction that frees up
those and other grant funds.

Timing is an important element. We appreciate the collective patience of the people of this great
town. Middleton has felt many emotions relative to this short-sighted law. Rather than allowing
emotions to dictate our approach, we have positioned Middleton in a way to legitimately challenge this
law. This situation has been evolving and we have been diligently monitoring the facts. We are one
town united. We love this town and we would do anything to defend it. We know you feel the same.

In service,

ON BEHALF OF THE MIDDLETON SELECT BOARD

Rick K_assiotis, Select 3oar!! Chair




COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

ESSEX, ss

TOWN OF MIDDLETON, by and through its
Select Board, RICHARD KASSIOTIS,
DEBBIE CARBONE, KOSTA E.
PRENTAKIS, BRIAN M. CRESTA, and
JEFFREY P. GARBER

Plaintiffs
V.

COMMONWEALTH OF
MASSACHUSETTS; EXECUTIVE OFFICE
OF HOUSING AND LIVABLE
COMMUNITIES; MASSACHUSETTS
EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT,;

and

MASSACHUSETTS OFFICE OF THE
STATE AUDITOR, by and through its
DIVISION OF LOCAL MANDATES

Defendants

VERIFIED COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY and INJUNCTIVE RELIEF and

SUPERIOR COURT
No.

MANDAMUS

Introduction, Parties And Jurisdiction

1.) The Town of Middleton (“Middleton” or “the Town™), by and through its Select Board
and its constituent members (collectively “Plaintiffs”), pursuant to G.L. c. 29, § 27C(e),
G.L.c.231A, § 1, et seq. and G.L. c. 249, § 5, hereby petition this Honorable Court for
a Declaration that Plaintiffs are exempt from the provisions of G.L. c. 40A, § 3A, for
an injunction restraining and enjoining the Defendants from enforcement of the
provisions of G.L. c. 40A, § 3A, a writ of mandamus requiring Defendants to provide
financial impacts and determination of deficiencies, and for an accounting of the

amounts of such deficiencies.



2.) Plaintiff, Town of Middleton, is a duly incorporated municipal corporation, situated in
Essex County, Commonwealth of Massachusetts, with a usual place of business at 48
South Main Street, Middleton, Massachusetts.

3.) Plaintiffs, Richard Kassiotis, Debbie Carbone, Kosta E. Prentakis, Brian M. Cresta, and
Jeffrey P. Garber, are the duly-elected members of the Select Board of the Town of
Middleton, with a usual place of business at 48 South Main Street, Middleton,
Massachusetts, and bring this claim in their official capacities.

4.) Defendant, Commonwealth of Massachusetts is a state organized and existing under
the Laws of the United States of America and pursuant to the Constitution of the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts, with a usual place of business c/o Secretary of the
Commonwealth, One Ashburton Place, Boston, Massachusetts.

5.) Defendants, Executive Office of Housing and Livable Communities (“EOHLC”) is a
cabinet-level Office of the Commonwealth, established pursuant to G.L. c. 6A, §
16GY4, with a usual place of business at 100 Cambridge Street, Boston, Massachusetts.

6.) EOHLC is the instrumentality of the Commonwealth tasked with promulgating
guidelines to determine if an MBTA community is in compliance with the provisions
of G.L. c. 40A, § 3A.

7.) Defendant Massachusetts Executive Office of Economic Development (“EOED”) 1s a
cabinet-level Office of the Commonwealth, established pursuant to G.L. c. 6A, § 16G,
with its usual place of business at One Ashburton Place, Room 2101, Boston,
Massachusetts, and which provides grant funding and resources through the
“MassWorks Infrastructure Program” to municipalities in Massachusetts for economic
development.

8.) The Division of Local Mandates (DLM) is an agency of the Office of the State Auditor
and is authorized under G.L. c. 29, §27C to conduct inquiries and issue determinations
in accordance with such statute. DLM is named as a defendant solely to ensure a full
and just adjudication of this matter and the Plaintiffs do not assert any allegation of
noncompliance against such defendant.

9.) This Court has jurisdiction over the parties and the subject matter of this Petition
pursuant to G.L. ¢. 29, § 27C, G.L. c. 241, § 1,and G.L. c. 231A, § 1, and G.L. c. 249,

§5.

10.)  Venue is appropriate in this Court as the subject matter of the Petition is concerned
with, and is situated in, the Town of Middleton, Essex County.



FACTS

11.)  Plaintiffs incorporate and reassert the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1-10
above, as if set forth in full herein.

12.) G.L.c. 29, § 27C(a) provides that no “law taking effect on or after January 1, 1981
imposing any direct service or cost obligation upon any city or town shall be effective
in any city or town ... unless the general court, at the same session in which such law
is enacted, provides, by general law and by appropriation, for the assumption by the
commonwealth of such cost”.

13) G.L. c. 29, § 27C(c) provides that no “administrative rule or regulation taking
effect on or after January 1, 1981 which shall result in the imposition of additional costs
upon any city or town shall [...] be effective until the general court has provided by
general law and by appropriation for the assumption by the commonwealth of such
cost”.

14) G.L.c. 40A, § 3A was added by § 18 of Chapter 358 of the Acts of 2020, and was
thereafter amended by § 10 of Chapter 29 of the Acts of 2021, effective July 29, 2021.

15) G.L.c. 40A, § 3A was further amended by §§ 152-153 of Chapter 7 of the Acts of
2023, effective May 30, 2023.

16.) G.L.c. 40A, § 3A was further amended by § 9 of Chapter 150 of the Acts of 2024,
effective August 6, 2024.

17.) G.L.c.40A, § 3A was further amended by §§ 2, 2A, 2B, and 20-26 of Chapter 234
of the Acts of 2024, effective November 20, 2024.

18.)  The General Court at no time, whether contemporaneously with enactment of G.L.
c. 40A, § 3A, or subsequent thereto has provided by general law or by appropriation
funds for the assumption by the Commonwealth of the direct costs to the Town imposed
by G.L. ¢. 40A, § 3A, or the corresponding regulations promulgated by EOHLC.

19.) The Town is defined as one of the “51 cities and towns” pursuant to G.L. ¢. 161A,
§ 1 and G.L. c. 40A, § 1A.

20.) As one of the “51 cities and towns”, the Town is considered an “MBTA
Community” subject to the provisions of G.L. c. 40A, § 3A.

21.)  Pursuant to G.L. c. 40A, § 3A, the Town as an “MBTA Community” is required to
adopt a zoning by-law providing for at least one (1) district of “reasonable size” in
which multi-family housing is permitted by right. Under these requirements, the Town
is required to enact zoning bylaws that allow, as a matter of right, 750 multi-family



housing units in approved districts. That is over a 20% increase in the total number of
housing units in the Town.

22)  Pursuant to emergency regulations promulgated by EOHLC in 760 CMR 72.00, the
Town has a deadline of July 14, 2025, to submit a “District Compliance Application”
to BEOHLC, setting forth information about current zoning, past planning for Multi-
family housing, if any, potential locations for a Multi-family zoning district and
establishing a timeline for various actions needed to create a Multi-family zoning
district in compliance with Ch. 40A, § 3A, and EOHLC regulations.

23.)  Under the EOHLC regulations, there are four (4) categories of MBTA communities
that must submit a “District Compliance Application”: Rapid Transit Communities;
Commuter Rail Communities; Adjacent Communities; and Adjacent Small Towns.

24) Middleton does not meet the definition of any one of the four (4) categories of
MBTA communities identified in the EOHLC regulations. Specifically, Middleton
contains no MBTA facilities and is not immediately adjacent to any communities with
mass transit services.

25) As an MBTA Community, the Town’s compliance with the provisions of G.L. c.
40A, § 3A and the corresponding EOHLC regulations is purportedly mandatory.

26.) Pursuant to G.L. c. 40A, §3A(b), failure by the Town to submit a “District
Compliance Application” to EOHLC by July 14, 2025, will result in the Town’s
ineligibility for funding from, inter alia, Housing Choice Initiative, the Local Capital
Projects Fund, and the MassWorks infrastructure program.

27) The Town has not submitted a renewed “District Compliance Application” to
EOHLC, and is at risk of losing eligibility for funding from those programs identified
in G.L. c. 40A, § 3A(b) and 760 CMR 72.09.

28.)  OnJanuary 8, 2025, the Massachusetts Supreme Judicial Court, in an action entitled
Attorney General v. Town of Milton, et al., (495 Mass. 183 (2025)) concluded, inter
alia, that, in addition to the potential loss of grant funds due to noncompliance, G.L. c.
40A, §3A establishes an affirmative mandate on all applicable communities to adopt
complying zoning bylaws.

29) The construction of 750 housing units will result in substantial infrastructure
impacts to the Town, including, without limitation, impacts to the Town’s water system,
public safety services, educational services and buildings, roads, and other general
governmental services.  Mitigating such impacts will require a substantial
appropriation of funds for the expenses and improvements necessary to service 750
new units of housing.



30.) The Town has submitted, and received approval of, an application for grant funding
to the EOED, MassWorks Infrastructure Program, in the amount of two-million dollars
($2,000,000.00) to support improvements to the intersection of Routes 62 and 114, in
the Town of Middleton. Exhibit 1, Correspondence of October 11, 2024. Such grant
is related to infrastructure to support a multi-family affordable housing development.
However, with respect to the grant, and despite the housing benefits of the underlying
project, EOED has stated that “a contract will not be executed if the [Town] is
noncompliant with Section 3A of M.G.L. c. 40A as determined by EOHLC”.

31.)) The Towns of Wrentham and Middleborough, and the City of Methuen filed written
requests with the Office of the State Auditor, Division of Local Mandates (“DLM”),
seeking a determination that G.L. c. 40A, § 3A imposed an unfunded mandate on
municipalities within the meaning of G.L. c. 29, § 27C.

32) Inresponse, DLM has issued a Determination dated February 21, 2025, that G.L.
c. 40A, § 3A constitutes an unfunded mandate. Exhibit 2, DLM Determination—
Wrentham.

33.)  As stated in such DLM determinations, the mandate established under the statute
and as affirmed by the SJC, will result in material impacts to the Town’s infrastructure,
necessitating new investment therein. As noted in the DLM Determinations, the
Commonwealth has acknowledged, in the adoption of G.L. c. 40A, §3A and the
regulations promulgated thereunder, that such impacts will occur and are the obligation
of the host community.

34.) However, the DLM was unable to determine the amount of such deficiency, in part
because EOHLC has filed to provide a fiscal impact analysis as required under G.L. c.
30A, §5. DLM concluded that it will complete such analysis when EOHLC completes
its statutorily required fiscal impact analysis.

35.) In the interim and as acknowledged by DLM, pursuant to G.L. c. 29, § 27C(e), a
municipality saddled with a statutory and/or regulatory unfunded mandate may be
exempted from compliance pending funding for and/or reimbursement of direct costs
imposed by a statute or regulation.

36.) Because G.L. c. 40A, § 3A and 760 CMR 72.00 impose direct financial obligations
on the Town, for which no contemporaneous appropriation has been made by the
General Court at the time of the adoption of such statute, the Town should be excused
from compliance, unless and until the Town is reimbursed for any direct costs that may
be imposed on the Town by G.L. c. 40A, § 3A, and 760 CMR 72.00, and there is
legislative appropriation for those costs going forward.

37.) Pursuant to current EOHLC regulations, the Town’s deadline to adopt a complying
zoning bylaw in accordance with the unfunded mandates of G.L. c. 40A, §3A is July
14, 2025. In order to do so, the Town would be compelled to hold extensive hearings



by its Planning Board and present such bylaw to its annual Town Meeting, which is
presently scheduled for May 13, 2025.

38.) Notwithstanding the directives in the DLM determinations, the Commonwealth and
EOHLC have publicly asserted, through the office of the Attorney General, that DLM’s
conclusions are incorrect and that compliance with G.L. ¢. 40A, §3A will be enforced,
notwithstanding the Commonwealth’s failure to fund the statute or produce a required
fiscal impact statement.

COUNTI
(Declaratory Relief—G.L. c. 29, § 27C(e); G.L. ¢. 231A)

39.) Plaintiffs incorporate and reassert the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1-38
above, as if set forth in full herein.

40) G.L. c. 40A, § 3A, and the emergency regulations promulgated pursuant thereto
constitute an unfunded mandate.

41) G.L. c. 40A, § 3A, and the emergency regulations promulgated thereto fail to
identify any applicable criteria to render the EOHLC regulations applicable to the
Town.

42) Because no contemporaneous appropriation was made by the Legislature to fund
the provisions of G.L. ¢. 40A, § 3A, or the corresponding regulations promulgated by
EOHLC, the Town should be excused from compliance with the requirements of G.L.
c. 40A, § 3A and those regulations.

43)) Because the Town does not meet the EOHLC’s definition of either a “Rapid Transit
Community”, a “Commuter Rail Community”, an “Adjacent Community”, or an
“Adjacent Small Town”, the Town should be excused from compliance with the
requirements of G.L. c¢. 40A, § 3A and those regulations.

44)  An actual case and controversy exists as to the applicability and enforceability of
the provisions of G.L. c. 40A, § 3A, and the corresponding regulations promulgated by
EOHLC as against the Town.

45)  Absent a declaration from this Court, there will be continued uncertainty as to the
applicability and enforceability of the provisions of G.L. c. 40A, § 3A, and the
corresponding regulations promulgated by EOHLC as against the Town.

COUNT II
(Injunctive Relie—EOHLC)



46.)  Plaintiffs incorporate and reassert the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1-45
above, as if set forth in full herein.

47)  Plaintiffs will be irreparably harmed by enforcement of the provisions of G.L. c.
40A, § 3A, and the corresponding regulations promulgated by EOHLC, in the form of
loss of funding for the Route 62 and Route 114 project through the MassWorks
Infrastructure Program, which is an important public works and capital improvement
project, imposition of unfunded direct costs, and potential adverse judgments arising
from enforcement actions initiated by the Attorney General’s Office on behalf of the
Commonwealth and EOHLC.

48)  Theirreparable harm to the Plaintiffs substantially outweighs any hardship that may
be claimed by the Defendants in the imposition of an unfunded mandate or the
erroneous application of EOHLC’s regulations to the Town.

49.)  The public interest and the interests of the Plaintiffs substantially outweigh the
interests of the Defendants in the imposition of an unfunded mandate and the erroneous
application of EOHLC’s regulations to the Town.

50.) Injunctive Relief excusing the Town from compliance with the Commonwealth’s
unfunded mandate is expressly contemplated under G.L. c. 29, §27C.

51.)  The Plaintiffs have no other adequate remedy at law.

COUNT 111
(Injunctive Relie—EOED)

52.) Plaintiffs incorporate and reassert the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1-51
above, as if set forth in full herein.

53.) Plaintiffs will be irreparably harmed by the refusal of EOED to execute grant
agreements or contracts or to otherwise dispense grant funds on the basis of non-
compliance with the provisions of G.L. c. 40A, § 3A or EOHLC’s enforcement of the
same, and the corresponding regulations promulgated by EOHLC, in the form of loss
of funding for the MassWorks Infrastructure Program from EOED, which 1s an
important public works and capital improvement project.

54.)  Among the harms of failing to receive the grant is the inability to construct vital
infrastructure that will support a multi-family affordable housing project.

55.)  Given the inapplicability of G.L. c. 40A, §3A to the Town and the corresponding
regulations, as discussed above, there is no legal or just reason to fail to honor the terms
of the grant issued to the Town.



56.)  The irreparable harm to the Plaintiffs substantially outweighs any hardship that may
be claimed by EOED or EOHLC in the imposition of an unfunded mandate or the
erroneous application of EOHLC'’s regulations to the Town.

57.) The public interest and the interests of the Plaintiffs substantially outweigh the
interests of said defendants in the imposition of an unfunded mandate and the erroneous
application of EOHLC’s regulations to the Town.

58.)  The Plaintiffs have no other adequate remedy at law.

COUNT IV
(Mandamus-EOHLC)

59.) Plaintiffs incorporate and reassert the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1-58
above, as if set forth in full herein.

60.) Pursuant to G.L. c. 304, § 5, EOHLC has a clear-cut, non-discretionary duty to
provide an estimate of the fiscal effect of any proposed regulation, including that on
the public and private sectors, for the first and second year, as well as a projection over
the first five-year period, or alternatively must file a statement of no fiscal effect with
the Secretary of the Commonwealth.

61.) EOHLC has not provided the estimate required under G.L. c. 304, § 5.

62.) As stated in the DLM Determination, DLM is unable to complete its full and
complete assessment of the deficiency in funding until such time as EOHLC provides
DLM with the statutorily required fiscal impact analysis.

63.) The Commonwealth’s failure and ongoing refusal to provide such analysis disables
DLM from completing its analysis and adversely impacts the Town which is entitled to
ascertain the level of required funding prior to complying with the mandate established
under G.L. c. 40A, §3A.

64.) Mandamus should issue requiring the Commonwealth to provide such analysis to
DLM and for DLM to complete its determination as to the deficiency is funding is
required as a matter of law and is a necessary prerequisite prior to the Town’s
compliance with G.L. c. 40A, §3A.

65.)  The Town will be irreparably harmed if mandamus is not issued and, comparatively,
the Defendants will suffer no harm in that such mandamus merely ensures compliance
with the law.

66.)  The public interest supports the issuance of a writ of mandamus.

67.) The Town has no other adequate remedy at law.

8



Count V
(Mandamus—DLM)

68.) Plaintiffs incorporate and reassert the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1-67
above, as if set forth in full herein.

69.) Pursuant to G.L. ¢. 29, § 27C(d) DLM has an obligation to issue a determination
within sixty (60) days of a municipality’s request as to whether the costs imposed by
the Commonwealth by any law, rule or regulation subject to this section have been paid
in full by the commonwealth in the preceding year and, if not, the amount of any
deficiency in such payments.

70.)  Pursuant to G.L. c. 29, § 27C(f), DLM has an obligation to issue a determination
within sixty (60) days of a municipality’s request as to the total annual financial effect
for a period of not less than 3 years of any proposed law or rule or regulation of any
administrative agency of the commonwealth.

71)  Due to the failures of the commonwealth to provide requisite information, DLM
has not issued the determinations required under G.L. ¢. 29, § 27C(d) and (f) within the
required sixty (60) days following the requests from the Towns of Wrentham and
Middleborough, and the City of Methuen or within a reasonable time following receipt
of the requested and required information from EOHLC.

72.)  The Town will be irreparably harmed if mandamus is not issued and, comparatively,
the Defendants will suffer no harm in that such mandamus merely ensures compliance
with the law.

73.)  The public interest supports the issuance of mandamus.

74.)  The Town has no other adequate remedy at law.

COUNT VI
(Accounting and Reimbursement—G.L. c. 29, § 27C(e))

75.)  Plaintiffs incorporate and reassert the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1-74
above, as if set forth in full herein.

76.)  If forced to comply with the unfunded mandate, the Town will be forced to assume
substantial costs directly incurred as a result of G.L. c. 40A, § 3A and the corresponding
regulations promulgated by EOHLC.



77.)  DLM has not yet issued its determination as to the amounts of deficiency resulting
from the Commonwealth’s failure to assume the direct costs of G.L. c. 40A, § 3A and
the corresponding regulations promulgated by EOHLC.

78.)  Pending DLM’s determination, and pursuant to this Honorable Court’s authority
under G.L. ¢. 27, § 27C(e), Plaintiffs request this Honorable Court determine the
amount of such deficiency, and order the Defendants to reimburse the Town any such
direct costs as may be so determined.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray that this Honorable Court enter judgment as follows:

1.) Entering a declaration that G.L. c. 40A, §3 A constitutes an unfunded mandate and that
pursuant to G.L. c. 29, § 27C(e) that the Town of Middleton is excused from compliance
with the provisions of G.L. ¢. 40A, § 3A, and the corresponding regulations
promulgated by EOHLC.

2.) Entering a declaration that the regulations promulgated by EOHLC do not apply to the
Town since the Town does not meet any of the definitions for a community required to
demonstrate compliance with the provisions of G.L. ¢. 40A, § 3A, or those regulations.

3.) Enjoining and restraining EOHLC or the Commonwealth from both enforcing G.L. c.
40A, §3A until such time as the Commonwealth adequately funds the necessary
infrastructure improvements for compliance with such statute and from withholding
funding under those programs identified in G.L. c. 40A, § 3A(b) and the corresponding
regulations promulgated by EOHLC based on any claimed non-compliance on the part
of the Town with the requirements submit a District Compliance Application to
EOHLC.

4.) Enjoining and restraining EOED from withholding execution of grant agreement or
contracts, or dispensing grant funds, on the basis of non-compliance with the provisions
of G.L..c. 40A, § 3A.

5.) Issuing a writ of mandamus to EOHLC compelling EOHLC to provide DLM with the
required fiscal impact analysis of the impacts of G.L. c. 40A, §3A and excusing the
Town from compliance with such statute until DLM completes such analysis and
funding is provided.

6.) Issuing a writ of mandamus to DLM compelling DLM to provide the Town with the
determinations required pursuant to G.L. ¢. 29, § 27C(d) and ().

7.) Determining the amounts of deficiency resulting from the Commonwealth’s failure to
appropriate funds for and assume the direct costs of the unfunded mandate imposed by
G.L.c. 40A, § 3A and the corresponding regulations promulgated by EOHLC.

10



8.) Ordering the Commonwealth to assume the costs of and reimburse the Town for its
direct costs resulting from any compliance with G.L. c. 40A, § 3A and the
corresponding regulations promulgated by EOHLC.

9.) Awarding the Plaintiffs their reasonable costs and attorneys’ fees.

10.)  All other relief this Court deems meet and just.

Plaintiffs,
TOWN OF MIDDLETON,

by and through its SELECT BOARD,
RICHARD KASSIOTIS, DEBBIE
CARBONE, KOSTA E. PRENTAKIS,
BRIAN M. CRESTA, and JEFFREY P.
GARBER

by their Attorneys,

/s/ Per C. Vaage
Jason R. Talerman, Esq. (BBO# 567927)
Per C. Vaage, Esq. (BBO# 664385)
Michael A. Reilly, Esq. (BBO# 659602)
Mead, Talerman & Costa, LLC
730 Main Street, Suite 1F
Millis, MA 02054
978-463-7700
jay(@mtclawyers.com
per@mtclawyers.com
mikef@mtclawyers.com

Dated: March 7. 2025

11



VERIFICATION

I, Justin Sultzbach, the Middleton Town Administrator, hereby verify and swear under the
pains and penalties of perjury that the facts relating to the Town of Middleton, as asserted in the
foregoing complaint are accurate to the best of my knowledge and belief. I hereby certify that I
have been duly authorized by the Town of Middleton Select Board to verify and approve this

Verified Complaint. \ i
AE A
Justip Sultzbach, Town Administrator
t )

12



EXHIBIT 1



Commonwealth of Massachusetts
EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
ONE ASHBURTON PLACE, ROOM 2101
BOSTON, MA 02108
https://www.mass.gov/orgs/eoed

MAURA T. HEALEY TELEPHONE
GOVERNOR (617) 788-3610

KIMBERLEY DRISCOLL FACSIMILE

LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR (617) 788-3605

YVONNE HAO

SECRETARY

Justin Sultzbach, Town Administrator October 11, 2024

Town of Middleton

49 South Main Street

Middleton, MA 01949

Dear Administrator Sultzbach: RE: Middleton-Middleton-Route 62 & -00776

Congratulations on Middleton’s successful application to the FY25 Round of the Community One
Stop for Growth. On behalf of the Healey-Driscoll Administration, I am pleased to inform you that
a grant in the amount of $2,000,000 from the MassWorks Infrastructure Program has been
approved to support the Route 62 & Route 114 project.

If this project is located in an MBTA Community, please note that a contract will not be executed
if the community is noncompliant with Section 3A of M.G.L. Chapter 40A as determined by
EOHLC.

As a condition of the award, you will be required to submit a completed Pre-Contract Form (to
be provided by EOED) no later than January 31, 2024, to begin the contracting process. A
MassWorks team member will reach out directly to discuss any additional conditions or
requirements, as well as the next steps related to this grant award. If you have any immediate
concerns, please contact Senior Director of Communities and Programs, Marc Horne, at
marc.horne{@mass.gov.

Please be advised that this letter does not constitute an agreement or contract with EOED or the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts, and the grant award is not final until the organization has
executed a contract with EOED. You should not proceed with any grant activities until a contract
is in place.

Sincerely,
A
i

Yvonne Hao
Secretary of Economic Development



EXHIBIT 2



The Commonwealth of Massachusetts

AUDITOR OF THE COMMONWEALTH
DIVISION OF LOCAL MANDATES

ONE WINTER STREET, 9™ FLOOR
DIANA DIZOGLIO BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS 02108 TEL (617) 727-0025
AUDITOR FAX (617) 727-0984

February 21, 2025

By First-Class Mail & Email <SBOffice@wrentham.gov>

Town of Wrentham Select Board
79 South Street
Wrentham, MA 02093

RE: Mandate Determination related to MBTA Communities Act (M.G.L. c. 40A. § 3A)

Dear Select Board Members:

On October 15, 2024, on behalf of the Town of Wrentham, you requested that the Office
of the State Auditor (OSA), through the Division of Local Mandates (DLM), provide a
determination of whether M.G.L. c. 40A, § 3A (the MBTA Communities Act, the Act, or § 3A),
constitutes an unfunded mandate imposed on cities and towns by the Commonwealth within the
meaning of M.G.L. ¢. 29, § 27C (the Local Mandate Law), and the total annual financial impact
thereof for a period of no less than 3 years. In response to your request, this office sent
correspondence dated November 27, 2024, requesting a waiver of the 60-day timeline under
M.G.L.c. 29, § 27C. On December 5, 2024, Michael King, Interim Town Manager, indicated that
the Wrentham Select Board voted unanimously to deny our waiver request. On December 12,
2024, further correspondence was sent stating that this office was unable to issue a determination
due to litigation in connection with the MBTA Communities Act that was before the Supreme
Judicial Court of Massachusetts at that time. The Court issued its decision in Attorney General v.
Town of Milton, No. SIC-13580, on January 8, 2025.

! Attorney General v. Town of Milton & another; Executive Office of Housing and Livable Communities, third-party
defendant, Mass., No. SJC-13580, slip op. (January 8, 2025), available at https://www.mass.gov/doc/attorney-
general-v-town-of-milton-executive-office-of-housing-and-livable-communities-sic-13580/download ~ (accessed
February 18, 2025).




Town of Wrentham Select Board
February 21, 2025
Page -2 -

DLM has conducted extensive legal and policy review regarding the requested matter,
including review of the Milton decision and the emergency regulations filed thereafter by the
Administration,” and determines that the MBTA Communities Act constitutes an unfunded
mandate. DLLM’s analysis in arriving at said determination is set forth below. Regarding the fiscal
impact, the Court in its decision noted the absence of the required statements under M.G.L. ¢. 30A,
§ 5, estimating the fiscal effect of proposed regulations on the public and private sector, and
considering the impact of such regulations on small business, rendering the guidelines promulgated
by the Executive Office of Housing and Livable Communities (EOHLC) ineffective.” DLM
requires additional time to perform a thorough analysis of the costs imposed as the impact of the
MBTA Communities Act is still being determined. Such analysis will include review of the
required fiscal impact statements by EOHLC and implementing other data collection measures as
necessary.

M.G.L. c. 29, § 27C — the Local Mandate Law

In general terms, the Local Mandate Law provides that any post-1980 state law, rule, or
regulation that imposes additional costs, excluding incidental local administration expenses, upon
any city or town is conditional on local acceptance or being fully funded by the Commonwealth.’
A city or town may request that DLM determine whether a law, rule, or regulation imposes a
mandate within the meaning of the Local Mandate Law and, if so, the costs of compliance and the
amount of any deficiency in funding by the Commonwealth.> Alternatively, or in addition to asking
DLM for such a determination, a community alleging an unfunded mandate may petition the
Superior Court for a determination of deficiency and an exemption from compliance until the
Commonwealth provides sufficient funding.®

In order to determine that a state law imposes a mandate within the meaning of the Local
Mandate Law, the law must take effect on or after January 1, 1981, must be a new law changing
existing law, and must result in a direct service or cost obligation imposed on municipalities by
the Commonwealth that amounts to more than an incidental local administration expense.’
Moreover, the challenged law must not be exempted from application of the Local Mandate Law,
whether by express override of the Legislature, application of federal law or regulation, or other
exemption.

2 760 CMR 72.00: Multi-Family Zoning Requirement for MBTA Communities (2025), available at
https://www.mass.gov/regulations/760-CMR-7200-multi-family-zoning-requirement-for-mbta-communities
(accessed February 18, 2025).

3 See Milton at 7, 22.

4 See M.G.L. ¢. 29, §§ 27C(a)—(c).

3 See M.G.L. ¢. 29, § 27C(4d).

6 See M.G.L. c. 29, § 27C(e).

7 See City of Worcester v. the Governor, 416 Mass. 751 (1994).




Town of Wrentham Select Board
February 21, 2025
Page - 3 -

Once DLM has determined that a law imposes a mandate within the meaning of the Local
Mandate Law, the analysis turns to whether the Commonwealth has provided sufficient funding
to assume the costs imposed by the law in question. The Local Mandate Law clearly states that
“the general court, at the same session in which such law is enacted, [must provide], by general
law and by appropriation, for the assumption by the commonwealth of such cost[s],... and. ..
by appropriation in each successive year for such assumption” (emphasis added).® The Supreme
Judicial Court has recognized that “the ‘plain meaning’ of [M.G.L.] c. 29, Section 27C(a), is that
funding be provided at the same time that [the] mandate is imposed on cities and towns,” and that
the language of the statute “means that the Legislature envisioned a scheme wherein cities and
towns would be reimbursed in advance — or, at least, contemporaneously — for costs incurred
pursuant to the mandate” (emphasis added).” Furthermore, funding must be provided by a specific
allocation of funds and cannot be fulfilled merely by increasing unrestricted local aid, as “[sjuch
an approach would render the [Local Mandate Law] meaningless, for it would always be possible
to attribute undesignated increases in State aid to the local mandate being challenged.”!? In short,
for funding to be sufficient, the imposed costs must be assumed by the Commonwealth and
appropriation made contemporaneously with and specific to the mandate in question.

M.G.L. c. 40A, § 3A — the MBTA Communities Act
The MBTA Communities Act provides as follows:
“Section 3A: Multi-family zoning as-of-right in MBTA communities

Section 3A. (a)(1) An MBTA community shall have a zoning ordinance or by-law that
provides for at least 1 district of reasonable size in which multi-family housing is permitted as of
right; provided, however, that such multi-family housing shall be without age restrictions and shall
be suitable for families with children. For the purposes of this section, a district of reasonable size
shall: (i) have a minimum gross density of 15 units per acre, subject to any further limitations
imposed by section 40 of chapter 131 and title 5 of the state environmental code established
pursuant to section 13 of chapter 21A; and (ii) be located not more than 0.5 miles from a commuter
rail station, subway station, ferry terminal or bus station, if applicable.

(b) An MBTA community that fails to comply with this section shall not be eligible for
funds from: (i) the Housing Choice Initiative as described by the governor in a message to the
general court dated December 11, 2017; (ii) the Local Capital Projects Fund established in section

8 See M.G.L. ¢. 29, § 27C(a).
% See Town of Lexington v. Commissioner of Education, 393 Mass. 693, 698-701 (1985).
10 See id. at 701.



Town of Wrentham Select Board
February 21, 2025
Page - 4 -

2EEEE of chapter 29; (iii) the MassWorks infrastructure program established in section 63 of
chapter 23A, or (iv) the HousingWorks infrastructure program established in section 27 2 of
chapter 23B.

(c) The executive office of housing and livable communities, in consultation with the
executive office of economic development, the Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority and
the Massachusetts Department of Transportation, shall promulgate guidelines to determine if an
MBTA community is in compliance with this section.”!!

An MBTA community is defined as “a city or town that is: (i) one of the 51 cities and
towns as defined in section 1 of chapter 161A; (ii) one of the 14 cities and towns as defined in said
section 1 of said chapter 161A; (iii) other served communities as defined in said section 1 of said
chapter 161A; or (iv) a municipality that has been added to the Massachusetts Bay Transportation
Authority under section 6 of chapter 161 A or in accordance with any special law relative to the
area constituting the authority.”!? The Town of Wrentham is specified as one of the other served
communities in clause (iii).!*

Application of the Local Mandate Law to the MBTA Communities Act

The MBTA Communities Act provisions contained in § 3A were added by § 18 of Chapter
358 of the Acts of 2020, effective January 14, 2021, amended by § 10 of Chapter 29 of the Acts
of 2021, effective July 29, 2021, further amended by §§ 152-153 of Chapter 7 of the Acts of 2023,
effective May 30, 2023, and further amended by § 9 of Chapter 150 of the Acts of 2024, effective
August 6, 2024.1* Accordingly, the MBTA Communities Act is a law that took effect on or after
January 1, 1981.

Furthermore, the MBTA Communities Act is a new law changing, not merely clarifying,
existing law.* The MBTA Communities Act creates a new zoning requirement, requiring that all
MBTA communities zone at least 1 district in which multi-family housing is permitted as of right,
subject to other requirements. !¢ Prior to enactment of the MBTA Communities Act, no such district
was required. Emergency regulations filed by EOHLC on January 14, 2025, provide significant
context regarding the breadth of considerations necessary for compliance with the Act — “[w]hat

T M.G.L. c. 40A, § 3A,; St. 2020, ¢. 358, § 18; amended St. 2021, c. 29, § 10; amended St. 2023, c. 7, §§ 152-153;
amended St. 2024, ¢. 150, § 9.

2ZM.G.L. c. 40A, § 1A; St. 2020, c. 358, § 16. See Appendix A.

BM.GL.c. 161A, § 1.

14 St 2020, c. 358, § 18; amended St. 2021, ¢. 29, § 10; amended St. 2023, ¢. 7, §§ 152-153; amended St. 2024, c.
150, § 9.

15 See Worcester, 416 Mass. at 756; see also Lexington, 393 Mass. at 697.

16 M.G.L. c. 40A, § 3A(a)(1).



Town of Wrentham Select Board
February 21, 2025
Page -5 -

it means to allow Multi-family housing ‘as of right’ ... [t]he metrics that determine if a Multi-
family zoning district is ‘of reasonable size’ ... [h]ow to determine if a Multi-family zoning district
has a minimum gross density of 15 units per acre ... [t]he meaning of M.G.L. ¢. 40A, § 3A’s
mandate that ‘such multi-family housing shall be without age restrictions and suitable for families
with children’ ... [t]he extent to which MBTA communities have flexibility to choose the location
of a Multi-family zoning district” — as well as permissible steps toward compliance, all of which
constitute a substantive change in municipal zoning authority.!”

The analysis continues with an evaluation of whether the MBTA Communities Actimposes
a direct service or cost obligation on municipalities by the Commonwealth that amounts to more
than an incidental local administration expense. The MBTA Communities Act provides in relevant
part that “[a]n MBTA community shall have a zoning ordinance or by-law that provides for at
least 1 district of reasonable size in which multi-family housing is permitted as of right” (emphasis
added). M.G.L. c. 4, § 6 provides that “[w]ords and phrases shall be construed according to the
common and approved usage of the language.” Given this, “[t]he word ‘shall’ is ordinarily
interpreted as having a mandatory or imperative obligation.”!®

Neither is the MBTA Communities Act conditional upon local acceptance. M.G.L. ¢c. 4,
§ 4 provides that “[w]herever a statute is to take effect upon its acceptance by a municipality or
district, or is to be effective in municipalities or districts accepting its provisions, this acceptance
shall be, except as otherwise provided in that statute, in a municipality, by vote of the legislative
body, subject to the charter of the municipality, or, in a district, by vote of the district at a district
meeting” (emphasis added). The Commonwealth has specifically included language in various
statutes conditioning effectiveness upon local acceptance (local option statutes).!” In contrast, the
MBTA Communities Act applies to all municipalities meeting the definition of an “MBTA

community.”?°

The Court in Milton confirmed this interpretation of the MBTA Communities Act as
imposing an obligation on MBTA communities, concluding that the town’s proposed reading that
the only consequence to an MBTA community for failing to comply would be the loss of certain
funding opportunities would “thwart the Legislature’s purpose by converting a legislative mandate
into a matter of fiscal choice” (emphasis added).?!

17 See 760 CMR 72.03 et seq.

18 Galenski v. Town of Erving, 471 Mass. 305, 309 (2015), quoting Hashimi v. Kalil, 388 Mass. 607, 609 (1983).
19 See Galenski, 471 Mass. 305, see also Adams v. City of Boston, 461 Mass. 602 (2012).

WM.G.L. c. 40A, § 1A; St. 2020, c. 358, § 16. See Appendix A.

2 Milton ac 17.



Town of Wrentham Select Board
February 21, 2025
Page - 6 -

As for costs of implementation, the MBTA Communities Act requires MBTA communities
to have “a zoning ordinance or by-law” providing for a district that meets specific criteria.
Although the total fiscal impact of implementation cannot be determined without further data
collection, it is apparent that, at a minimum, direct costs exist in developing compliant zoning that
amount to more than incidental local administration expenses. Incidental local administration
expenses “are relatively minor expenses related to the management of municipal service and . . .
are subordinate consequences of a municipality’s fulfilment of primary obligations” (emphasis
added).?? The implication is that expenses incurred by a municipality in fulfilling its primary
obligations are not incidental local administration expenses and, consequently, one must look to
the purpose of the statute to determine the primary obligation imposed on the municipality. The
purpose of the MBTA Communities Act as stated in the emergency regulations 1s “to encourage
the production of Multi-family housing by requiring MBTA communities to adopt zoning districts
where Multi-family housing is allowed As of right....”?*. The Commonwealth through EOHLC,
after review of submitted applications, awarded “technical assistance” grant funding to some
MBTA communities for the very purpose of developing zoning compliant with the Act.?*
Accordingly, DLM determines that the MBTA Communities Act imposes direct service or cost
obligations on municipalities by the Commonwealth that amount to more than incidental local
administration expenses.

MBTA Communities Act Funding

The MBTA Communities Act does not provide a funding mechanism for compliance with
its provisions.? The statutory language of § 3A and the original enacting legislation of Chapter
358 of the Acts of 2020 fail to provide for the assumption by the Commonwealth of the costs
imposed by the MBTA Communities Act and did not contain an appropriation for § 3A.% The
FY 2022 budget, passed during the same annual session as when the MBTA Communities Act
became effective (the first annual session of the 2021-2022 biennial legislative session), and all
other appropriations bills passed during the same annual session, likewise did not contain an

22 See Worcester, 416 Mass. at 758—759 (where the primary obligation imposed by a regulation was “to identify
children in need of special education,” written parental notification was “a subordinate administrative task™; where
the primary obligation of a law was “to provide school accessibility to students with limited mobility,” the
requirement for the annual submission of school building access plan imposed “only administrative expenses
incidental (subordinate) to the primary obligation™).

23760 CMR 72.01.

24 See Executive Office of Housing and Livable Communities, 34 Technical Assistance Awards & Resources,
available at https://www.mass.gov/info-details/3a-technical-assistance-awards-resources (accessed February 18,
2025).

35 Cf St. 1983, c. 503, An Act Extending the Time of Voting in Certain Elections (“SECTION 3. As hereinafter
provided, the commonwealth shall pay to each city and town an amount sufficient to defray the additional costs
imposed on the city or town under the provisions of this act.”).

2 See M.G.L. c. 404, § 3A,; St. 2020, c. 358.




Town of Wrentham Select Board
February 21, 2025
Page - 7 -

appropriation for § 3A.%" Neither was the MBTA Communities Act specifically exempted from
application of the Local Mandate Law by the Commonwealth.?®

As stated above, the Commonwealth has already provided grant funding to some MBTA
communities for certain costs of drafting compliant zoning. In addition, the Commonwealth
continues to anticipate that the MBTA Communities Act will impose costs on MBTA
communities. Section 2A of Chapter 150 of the Acts of 2024 includes the following line item:

7004-0077.. For a local capital projects grant program to support and encourage
implementation of the housing choice designation for communities that have
demonstrated housing production and adoption of housing best practices, including
a grant program to assist MBTA communities in complying with the multi-family
zoning requirement in section 34 of chapter 404 of the General Laws....................
$50,000,000 (emphasis added)

Further, Section 4 of said chapter 150 provides in part:

(a) There shall be in the executive office of housing and livable communities a
Housing Works infrastructure program to: (i) issue infrastructure grants that support
housing to municipalities and other public entities ... ; or (ii) assist municipalities
to advance projects that support housing development, preservation or
rehabilitation. Preference for grants or assistance under this section shall be given
to: ... (C) multi-family zoning districts that comply with section 34 of said chapter
404 .... (emphasis added)

However, establishment of the grant programs above did not occur contemporaneously with the
enactment of § 3A, nor did they provide the required specific allocation of funds to municipalities
for the costs of compliance with § 3A.%?° Moreover, there are questions as to whether a grant

27 See St. 2021, c. 24; St. 2021, c. 23; St. 2021, c. 29; St. 2021, ¢. 76.

28 Cf St. 1993, c. 71, An Act Establishing the Education Reform Act of 1993 (“SECTION 67. This act shall apply to
all cities, towns, and regional school districts, notwithstanding section twenty-seven C of chapter twenty-nine of the
General Laws and without regard to any acceptance or appropriation by a city, town, or regional school district or
to any appropriation by the general court.”) See Lexington, 393 Mass. at 698 (“[the challenged law] does not indicate
any express amendment or repeal of section 27C”); see also School Committee of Lexington v. Commissioner of
Education, 397 Mass. 593, 595-596 (1986) (“One option was to provide specifically that [the challenged law]
supersedes [the Local Mandate Law]. . . . [TThe Legislature could either have repealed or superseded an aspect of
[the Local Mandate Law] directly.”).

2 See Lexington, 393 Mass. at 699-700 (where the Supreme Judicial Court of Massachusetts recognized that a method
by which reimbursement may be sought by cities and towns after the costs have been incurred and without an
appropriation of funds specifically targeted to the assumption of incurred costs does not pass muster under M.G.L.
c. 29, § 27C(a) (emphasis added)).



Town of Wrentham Select Board
February 21, 2025
Page - § -

program requiring municipalities to compete for funding to support and encourage compliance
with a law, even if created and funded contemporaneously with the law in question, would satisfy
the Local Mandate Law because such a program is not intended to assume all costs imposed.*

The emergency regulations also make reference to potentially necessary funding for
compliance with § 3A: “For purposes of the unit capacity analysis, it is assumed that housing
developers will design projects that work within existing water and wastewater constraints, and
that developers, the municipality, or the Commonwealth will provide funding for infrastructure
upgrades as needed for individual projects” (emphasis added).*’ Whether a particular expense is
imposed by the MBTA Communities Act within the meaning of the Local Mandate Law will
require further data collection and analysis. DLM will implement data collection measures
necessary to determine the estimated and actual financial effects on each MBTA community of
the MBTA Communities Act. In the interim, because the Commonwealth did not assume the costs
of the MBTA Communities Act by general law and by appropriation in the 2021 session
contemporaneously with the effective date of the MBTA Communities Act, DLM determines that
the current method of funding by the Commonwealth of the costs of compliance with § 3A incurred
by MBTA communities does not satisfy the requirements of the Local Mandate Law.

Conclusion

It is the determination of DLM that the provisions of the MBTA Communities Act impose
an unfunded mandate within the meaning of the Local Mandate Law as the current method of
funding by the Commonwealth of § 3A compliance costs incurred by municipalities does not
satisfy the requirements of the Local Mandate Law. DLM cautions that, as with all determinations,
the conclusions herein are based on DLM’s interpretation and application of current law and
judicial precedent and, accordingly, are subject to legislative or regulatory changes or judicial
determination. As stated above, DLM will conduct data collection measures as necessary and will
report on the financial effects of the MBTA Communities Act when the process concludes.

This opinion does not prejudice the right of any city or town to seek independent review
of the matter in Superior Court in accordance with M.G.L. c. 29, § 27C(e). This determination
does not guarantee that expenses will, in fact, be reimbursed, as the Supreme Judicial Court has
opined that a municipality’s sole recourse for an unfunded mandate is to petition the Superior
Court for an exemption from compliance >*

30 See id.
31 760 CMR 72.05(1)(€)2.
32 See Worcester, 416 Mass. at 761-762.



Town of Wrentham Select Board
February 21, 2025
Page - 9 -

Thank you for bringing this important matter to our attention. We look forward to
continuing to work with you in service to the residents of Wrentham and our Commonwealth.

Sincerely,

pHR=

Jana DiNatale
Director of Division of Local Mandates
Office of State Auditor Diana DiZoglio

cc: Michael J. King, Interim Town Manager, Town of Wrentham
Kimberley Driscoll, Lieutenant Governor of the Commonwealth
Andrea Campbell, Attorney General of the Commonwealth
Karen E. Spilka, President of the Senate
Ronald Mariano, Speaker of the House
Edward M. Augustus Jr., Secretary, Executive Office of Housing and Livable Communities
Adam Chapdelaine, Massachusetts Municipal Association Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer
Elizabeth T. Greendale, President of the Massachusetts Town Clerks’ Association



Town of Wrentham Select Board
February 21, 2025
Page - 10 -

Appendix A: MBTA Communities®

“51 cities and towns”, the cities and towns of Bedford, Beverly, Braintree, Burlington, Canton,
Cohasset, Concord, Danvers, Dedham, Dover, Framingham, Hamilton, Hingham, Holbrook, Hull,
Lexington, Lincoln, Lynn, Lynnfield, Manchester-by-the-Sea, Marblehead, Medfield, Melrose,
Middleton, Nahant, Natick, Needham, Norfolk, Norwood, Peabody, Quincy, Randolph, Reading,
Salem, Saugus, Sharon, Stoneham, Swampscott, Topsfield, Wakefield, Walpole, Waltham,
Wellesley, Wenham, Weston, Westwood, Weymouth, Wilmington, Winchester, Winthrop and
Woburn.

“Fourteen cities and towns”, the cities and towns of Arlington, Belmont, Boston, Brookline,
Cambridge, Chelsea, Everett, Malden, Medford, Milton, Newton, Revere, Somerville and
Watertown.

“Other served communities”, the cities and towns of Abington, Acton, Amesbury, Andover,
Ashbumham, Ashby, Ashland, Attleboro, Auburn, Ayer, Bellingham, Berkley, Billerica,
Boxhorough [sic], Boxford, Bridgewater, Brockton, Carlisle, Carver, Chelmsford, Dracut,
Duxbury, East Bridgewater, Easton, Essex, Fitchburg, Foxborough, Franklin, Freetown,
Georgetown, Gloucester, Grafton, Groton, Grove land, Halifax, Hanover, Hanson, Haverhill,
Harvard, Holden, Holliston, Hopkinton, Ipswich, Kingston, Lakeville, Lancaster, Lawrence,
Leicester, Leominster, Littleton, Lowell, Lunenburg, Mansfield, Marlborough, Marshfield,
Maynard, Medway, Merrimac, Methuen, Middieborough. [sic] Millbury, Millis, Newbury,
Newburyport, North Andover, North Attleborough, Northborough, Northbridge, Norton, North
Reading, Norwell, Paxton, Pembroke, Plymouth, Plympton, Princeton, Raynham, Rehoboth,
Rochester, Rockland. Rockport, Rowley, Salisbury, Scituate, Seekonk, Sherborn, Shirley,
Shrewsbury, Southborough, Sterling, Stoughton, Stow, Sudbury, Sutton, Taunton, Tewksbury,
Townsend, Tyngsborough, Upton, Wareham, Way land, West Boylston, West Bridgewater,
Westborough, West Newbury, Westford, Westminster, Whitman, Worcester, Wrentham, and such
other municipalities as may be added in accordance with section 6 or in accordance with any
special act to the area constituting the authority.

BMG.L. c. 161A,§ 1.



ey 391D AUNINY IDJ pRINPRYIS
3q o} (Aunjoed an|g} IS 10oyss
o pug ..nmunmn_ 1834§ 1SNaa, .,

IS SE
133184 |1BH JELIOWIAY

Ja84)s ajdeyy g

(T1ey usaL Mo)

Buiby uo j1ounoy Bupaap paeog 109)9S SZ0Z ‘w8l Y24eW
pieog 138135 SZ/ify ‘an) 3y} je passnasIp aq 0] IS e ¥

Bunwoadp)

jU0}3)PPIlN JO SIUBPISAI By} WO L) 1eay 0] 1) pam idojaaapas ‘aasesad ‘wiejal )es

isanJadod paumo umo} asay} Joj Jxau s Jeypm
$81135 Wn.io4 Jiqng sanado.d snjding

UO}31PPIW JO UMO]




ViNucla|ppIngsssassy ga | aude Jes | #202/91/21 ‘8180 JO SY Eleq | 5202 .am> | L -beg | 2691 pig | 2991 Auadang

s) pue sbueyd 0] 128[gNSs S] INY 1090 8 0] paARIaq S} LojewLojU| SIL L HeLUJE[as|q

0oLblL B0l oo Wpao ids  i00L'PLL _wm_... 1 0080s3@ 98N 'd AYs and UNP - GEGIONT 18Bd [00°068°01L TWS/S 1ei0L |sz'0 VH/QY leloL i
| ! = L - = L ] ! ! it ! -
| — [ — - | !
| N ol A W | _ | _ 1 |
S — . — = - | — | S——
e e R —_—
e e [ + | | T | . L | I | I
i | { i .
_08ZLiLGDZPEL v | 00000C 10 jo0L'vi2 O I 008 jegse | &2'9F I els  ds 0680 T T lisanguni ces
SN pessessY | i 1 SHArfA1988S | % bz s0dv _x € %z % [TIu|pow| 4 TTEN AV T HJINNA é88G| i TedkL T [sdALn | TidSA jswin# 94 %W | 95sa onil On
— {£26) NOLLOES aNVl
T [ TEGET 2T 866MLL/2E | 2008/6190 1 3 1Z002/6L/90 000’0} oorred " asya| L00ZIBNZL | T T idingg
CHDREV | fSMPIojpRIET oL 11002/62/90 | Z002/61180| [ 9 &Sua:mo_ocmv sieday ¥8Y9| 200E/22/20 | jeajdAy - gpwed”
—segiiioiig " [S A BiopelE T o) | vooziozimo || BHS3OWM0LS. "o T 1 Tpeug” §.69| £002/50/60 XH peeg
 [snenysyuerl T zg ¥8 1ondisnodl! 5 1000°28 siiear 1ed 12§8| 100271180 ! g 8uoz fogap
~ogapopd | oM PIOIPEIEl TGl TR002/90/80 TR IS iesul; ) ! WUIB IS 62-600208| 6002/01/50 i Uo7 | K ICR
——=—=——{ [ebiizepiied] " z£ " Tvo02mzie0 | oop juoy soeidal] 2 [ooo'y soy-asIN 592-6002] 6002/200L} _8lysuoz 12izfhsis)
s | [SMPOPRS] 61 olodeoo L e 2 SIS UUiLio) Uy §oL0; SIOZI0CR 'E'SIg ] 99 PRI - OTIWETHT
N s [GNZ SIVINSNI r 9 ] I008'6 | Aouswu T RLLY LIGZiE0/0) 2SI gH sielied - DZHOETAN
" dEquoNg | ASMPopRIE 51 ZL0ZI20/80] SseigeBZ s T | 9 'o0g's P wiiod uek LV LLOZILLILO! 16000 1z.,.€|m_um_n_:“wmmi.i lnmwmwm-.m_vm@ .
———— \S MPiojpRIg, S| 020ZWLILO 00131 g ds [ o o0zl e I LT R " _ adt) o]
. %ediond T \spmpiopesdl Sl LZ0CIZ0/E0 fI¥5 57 UBfippE b w|o TTR06'0L T eBEIES T T T 025025 OZ0zieiel| — SHOLOVANISI08d
I | Ag| unsey .‘.~ oeq | usalse | seoN| 90A] 181g | pesoly  iUnouly s8eQ SnEaﬂ_lnwuwn_
- auoud SBILALSY - - T SLINHId DNITTING
" egquoud I R I | ) . A e S T A 5550, 6F65
n — = I = i T - i i B SINZWSSISSY ¥IHLO
T ezquoud - [ B |
——Siguong ] F— - — ! | "N (EOIOUINOS | Uil 102 JUENDS 0F'L90'E Pue
RENPEREE o w. - - Joueix epeloucnuiey Ajsewud Buiaey ‘561 Inoge
= qigg——— {1 3NVYS G3SYHOUN ANV AdvNE 3 oN |08z 068L/9ZIV0 | M 081431 AdNTH * >m_zzmxos_ _ Eﬁﬁ_”_w m_:hﬂﬁnuﬁ__ﬂwow.mumo;ﬁ bw_won_mﬂ ““_‘m,___um
~wd gz e _ SOION|TVN| WA dSU [eouUdeBS | aEg |_.m9¢ jypEbsy el | ki
W.mE_La \Qmﬁ.aﬁwuyl. NOILVIWHOANI SATVS
L wd m.mF@mj YLOZIBLIE oy puz e9A000'008 009'909 00549 . 6TO 0009 .8;.& M 866 Ad_isioz!
2w/ oieg g SLOZ/R0ZL | puU3 163400509 1002'p08 1006298 _ 520 loog'e 002182 sg6 | Ad 19102
T V20200 \elazzizL 1103 PU JEBAI009°9L9 1009'919 looziise Tsz0  oos’s  bos'eez T og6 ™ TAd 4102
A oz, 110y pu3 18341005129 005128 ‘aoc'sLy __sz0___loge's_ _ oog'oye  _ | See_, A _|8L0Z_
T Ty T Y lioy pud Jeah 005'z8L 009'28L |005'¥pS . 520 008’ 00€°282 566 | Ad | 0Zoz
== i 0202/91/Z1 108 pUT 1884006582 006'584 005°P¥S 520 008’ ‘0095ee S86 Ad ' 1gbe 0000~
LTS || Le0CiERE I T EE ELDN Y doeiie " loos'ids T SZ0 __008'S Toor'vEe [ 5e6  Ad | 2z0e ANNTH "ASNNIHOW
|, (geoz/elL/zL) WOy PU3 JSOAOOY'v9E _ (00V'¥O8 LPcu 929 * ST0  00L'S | 005'Z€T 586 Nd | €20Z; YIANMO SNOINEH
T junoddy Jesn 1104 PU3 JeBA|00S'0E6 loog'ogs  i00Z've9 4 szo _oo\.m __1009'082 L 886 Ad vE0Z edfy | 200
v«oﬂm:ﬂmm ve/ELIZ) SAVSE0Z|002'9L6 i002'9.6 00L'YLL ' 520 __joos's o0E'SSE 886 Ad  SToZ| o —
< __om.q w wmgoz uommmmm< jiddy jejal A mcq._ _ azi5 pue’ (swe)| prex H _lenep pig | #5n rumo HIAXL
< |48 jedALwunpuen  /ggl :qi b._onen_ SINIWSSISSY SNOIATN
| 0008801 _[pue jmoL ' TR ;
< T emge 1ETBLE - Len___n_w AL €2BIE piaidS BAToL ﬁoo PYPIN-0]  emnog | 000065510 VI ‘NOLITAAIN!
.< “l00e'9L6 1002 vLL 520 gh,m 008's8Z 1m0 m:@ﬁ R 1S NIVIN HLNOS 9%
00¢5z6 T 004%kL wNo “.@mw s 1008°55¢ 15101 Buiping 7 C T TI9H TVIMONEN
ettt |58 — — B 4O NMOL NOLFTAaIN;
SiMvivD NOLLAI¥DS3aA TvOT Ty T _ -  dIHSHINMO
002926 1002'946 Q3$$ASSY om.PvK — TwEOTT Toors 00 S _ 6610 VIV ‘NOL3100IN.
0 10 anviasn T leapuey T pas puey ewolpieA " jeBuwping . B 18 DAV 4|
002'9£6 1002'9.8 dwl +3sn JUVININNE TVSIVHEAIT §53008d NI “NOILYOO0T ALHEd0Nd
002'946 1 002'926 yddv 18 Iy puopeac Buiping alleed ¥ qlfessed 101 %2018 VN
132Jed {P10L  PJBJ (B304 L 40 4 SpIBD NOLITAaiN £€210-0000-5200 €210 0000 $200



ViNuoleIPPINOGSSasSY :a | cude siesn | vZ0Z/9L/T) 01eq JO S eled | 5202 Jeea | | thes | Zegl pig | 1081 :Ayedold 8| pue ofueyd 0f elans s Inq 1084100 g 0} PAATIIS] 5| UOKEWIOMUI SIUL JewWIelSIg
poL'zi oov'ey joor'e Jddy aunjea (epadg 002 sddy wey piex leteroy. le2seg
e o GoL'zy 0oLzl oov's o a%esmou eds 002 pddy we) pieA siejoL Bupng
S — o L e e e
{ ﬂ oo w. SOOI SUNSH— L. il -
i
L. L [ SIS (——— ST, (NS RS S | R
Go0e'y oos'y CL | 1L | 008 b 1 see % 1 0062 Y002 | AY AV O009IX00TL L A _Q  POOMPNS 20
o1z 001’z b b | o0& b | se6 %L 1 096 OWOZ | AW _AY , 000K L 'sTa oqpesH/o 008’
00e'y 008"y L L o008 L | sg6 %L L 09%6 00z | AV AV | 0008Y L §.Q 1000 PeaH (O: 008
— 0or'L ioor's VT T T ooe !y see | wavz | L jost ol | Av | AV 00009 | v i Alv T Bused ge
abeuws pesSessy  flensddy ~ i sunr T3 08N | M | OM | %ideQ |S/Qpiditn [ iBeA Uog [ erp T aZs Tho eIy T u%n,‘ommm,
e - - - S ———— SWsY, PIBA | S8IEey igmgﬂ
) v1v'80E 1890'c  890°C  BI6'6  #62'6  SiEoLened R T W i
L¥'80E '890't  B90'C 866 ¥6C'6  simeLBupyng I=A U Bupybay || *MMds . % L
I — —— T OY
T ‘ [ [— 1 - B | %ov_ |00t *E_um_u_e
TTwows oseL 0 b [ws s | wwdsopua ai3 . | [ | 318 W
L ‘ T U 046 o5 __juewaseg| 1Wg | i M “..wmmm_ 19 _g.m ,ua "
1  1£99'€6 T s wsi's | [ - Dochy ST FH |
13 S — 28h'S 3 S MEsAM
i I sze'ae 8LYe S o 08 | L
O T i S + 44 _wu_n>.r 0: uogensy|
~ I||TQ. 9L erve  lsevz sor'z. e vz ‘ ' T -
I N% |lenD sweual [jv % edALiv  eery 'S lBAMspun VSR VIPVZS Eeiy°d  YSSAD  jeesvieN || eoud {eleqeres  edAn alteed |Bupy e ]
sealy Hy sealy gqng seleg ajgeiedweos b - ‘cES_Whnmm,
100D T ey leysg | IBpoN o | 0008L'¥0 k!m_wh idepun | %elZ ,_,azo\o.aoo . %glZIe0L . 21019007 - 2|, SI00|J WG
SwoH SNqoN| et £9$ 45/ 1B10L Zegsle  wwolfpy | —. ... opwerg j "~ Tloogoes
008'cSes  IeAPessessy | 0000 Woml | ... [Epeds _elexu0n -zl 100l3°d
_ 0000'} 14 WwssY 0000’k WNIOEN ~||+ Olwoucog Wb -1, uopned
_l IBAOPIIGAO | 0000'E  POWHEN | .. l. N _iEmioes
koom.mme ) _MuW.F VR Pw 005 D‘_.ﬁ @wmm ..QEO_‘ m»mww\q vooﬂ Dmu uop wn,—& __mzs_ﬂ _.o em Wi °d
_ T | wngdwm | ocooooi 4 ope uonersidaq : noipwu_m\ L
_ oov'es | semssyoeds | erves | oudly | {6ung [ o | senid sm | e
{00000 dsunr 4, " zase0 L) Bupy 0 _seoeideny | Pop uoy
| wic'evz | moLPMdeq | 0005Vl . Ipvems TBuulo wipev sunr.
== i 815'69 adaq I_, 0008 o.um oseq %M.@( AV BNy L Suey .. L oMV
— - { eiduep 19pRE O2d muca.n@"_ TBUIG 088k h>wm__§_m>um.mh_ ﬁMN,I
s Bupeoy J=I0L P ™ pooo - oiBud (0L %id ..2_6# UDERIO} U] eIty
... - V| S (fewoLpig 6upgj 0z PRV | owey pig
o . . QWi T Buy 0 weaz odeus
i ] T Bmaio_wewev : |
. "l B 2 L oy o weape Jojog |
= ! “iouaw] | I . B0 wndppy T " iBusudsy- 101 2o jooy |
i [ 'Wiwi§ | suupg  swooy | yun‘oN| ool Bupd 0 Tdegund | eaeo- 1| Aoy
n.m Bugepoway UMOPYEeaLg S3Y seinizegd e o ) f1eas 0eg
n o« | T BlRIOUOOWSY - b2 IIBM d
| =t POOM - | Bweld
oL = UMD % T ejpdouog - punog
= ao_u_L_ i1 0 syun (1)}
. |28z SNl i Agz g L -Hi WiHAis
i " Tuogeoo) uopelg il - gy, eddL
] voflelwaojl) opuo) LO:,VE._O%._ .._Oiﬂus.m
i TESEIT SUETTeT) £210-0000-5Z00 QI 122224



Middleton, MA Technologies

1 inch = 55 Feet
110

www.cai-tech.com

or misuse or misrepresentation of this map.




Middleton, MA &

1inch = 55 Feet www.cai-tech.com
0 55 110 165

n_

., 19503.97SF. 126 »
7178

114

PV 31698

62

9%’

420
)

Data shown on this map is provided for planning and informational purposes only. The municipality and CAl Technologies are not responsibla for any use for other purposes
or misuse ar misrepresentation of this map.




'f

30

r

€

e

|

PETCIRNTTING RECNIRE TRVITES W, EEVRY PEVTREVCTEWEI JEVIV_ R PE IV 8 208
lronmar. to Mae Aot graailes o tia Jaoa de.uAA.Lq.A.u .»tmu.:m
cqaim*bm. lmm‘«uk Roiamns Oandh FSAriounds a—(v a2 daeracan EIWLAM-.M.I{}
,Lml,"\.lmmkq}»-, AU AN MA AR BGOAMAR Mous St Danct .ﬁo-dfbu.

m\o\..__%o-u?: wu%-v. O‘%MQJJMAM &. %crupc MW}MLWV

erarte oo WMMMWWW Tan U AAISA
B bosd Jorafda M. ook, AVUIRTIVIVIR 44 SOV S PP Y

WLM onrch debiaz Ut tiomn 5. Fowr beos
| Mowd Q. Sounrssny Yo Y. Foogk LS
FETNNUNN NV SVUVETTY 75 %Mm&m M Q. Fooys - heo 9

Dt Baam e, W 89, 1£90, Sharan '{AULAOWP.MG GMMLLCL an. efroae.
II.N\WW\.U:L ‘&m‘uJ(\.M WA ool annch URTAL I oanr g"&%o—% oAnd aefasnootidgal

E.\unn”ﬁu:k'maﬁﬂ.dwo; 30 ann ok ATV, Brean- Sag W .
' i f

ot g TP/ Lk deed

MMWMM Iraina mo\.o..uu\.qm mqumo%m:tg Loths.

L

_.-%m.?cmww 2o oun 2rcands  ownadl. Azafa “Maia wmdaﬂru
MAM\_MMMMMM WWMW

Mm max, Yolann \""”"‘*’W‘*ﬁ Yararher of Yns Vnoas

FIV-TE TV

M‘km%%w}n MMuo—SMW\M:&MWMm_

U%mwkw\noaum AR OAagL oraAres Anike et AGLAR TuaaKs Ly Wanin

g

»d.ﬁ.n:&m&nm o das, 50\0{1&)\.&“0&&&1& ek a0 MMWD‘-

1!

3705 Snaanang, IIMOUWT QL VWA Xy, Yasas Rrusmka, Maat Y, Ho aanny S timmuﬂ
oL Bumy od Bostomron e Bos S oaantay of hosamhrerfonrds ool Kitols OQ‘Y'NMB-
Loun counidianotion of Mo anmsncnach fAEG Aotons draich Iy WAL W,

.U\l&a o Mas, Wolie acur haraas oae araadinasd o ua}zdz.a %Ll_t“o\:,\u Loole,
],_MMI\.IULA/V\Q( J‘f\.ovw thar Poandh;Taranc s ‘\N‘Mw% EVERY ISP TP | s.-_.d Unraqes.
!I‘\'\.:r.!_hu\.h.’ o, Jaasandinssh p:qd:cé %AM a‘.v.\d:. \o rand Fodes htrnask, Masrres

',Ju. ek bu\ Aouch 'YY\‘i'S{MMA.uk. o Mowe oo to faaldt. Man AOAMS
m‘ou,, a8 ~HAL -)Y\_nwm%,u o.Mak mtv.{wwmm Wuu.o-ﬂu 1o Vs Aord sk
e VAL AARELREADNA DA muwu_"o%bv M S OAnh )JM'B ﬁo*mmu

xma orndh Dorowsr W, asrs M%W A BAR bm«koﬁﬁaf
Yar }\s.u.a\.{/d_ ruo?rtuucv?“? do h.ou-us adlrmonnlodage, do Raanadn ~
FANECERATUS OAdls BAALGANS Jsou.mrx. oo ehouan 2ok ‘ﬂ, Lomach. ann houd WAL

B oan. onack Waans Asamrodred- @Awm:«wo& oA ARA L. Mo marent eon ]
OX BrVVY. & 0'()}/\.\.&:\.1 0*? E{M'&M MWMAM-

f

by rouat Sates KAnast o Mas fulans of begamaiang Loty
Jfl'k, rowch Tuoastess amadh Masie aantsiasona arndh W‘% Arrner anadh
AACAAMEEAN. MAS.  MAAMI. 0rn Lo.-;'.d--)(\m.:uwl:.»u Ao Lownoy o M,b.o-\m\mn.% Lownd\

Ok § o eovsroasic ArTRA A A.o:.nck ca:\.o.-vcku,s’ Wt irn ’v\.uuu- Mmu;}orn,

e —_




— | R

-W'WWWQ{ AMAGLOLAM%U—D-\WLWM.'HAQIWW LT P

s of, 8t AanrrnmalnOantia; Hnods B Rnowe qord rustocte AL oundk eow g o, fATTE oe A
vy Pas Acans s roudk qroscties o Mot ar a.:sm.w; annck Man- ' 'W

i owadk MM,WWMWWM’GM&QM
cﬁmm,mm MWAA iﬁo'uwm, W'MMU.L |
ovirnis oaadh crmmnonneth of a2 draos, PN WAL WAL, ¥ ks |
hond. aroadon, e &W E.W\_‘r&mmuak 'Wb%ﬁ- of Hax Ao, Flosmins
Y\:’\&‘&MAAM.hk MA.'\J-W\MM‘\% a-%b\-u& WMO’%MW&
of et M UAR odrinre o\s;mgmbwl_v\wmu,w Rransasanio AR
cwn. Sk k. AsodA Main Waniay AARis olaag of Dt aantlas s

G, O MA;%O—“-D\ \ Y o ss. Wi&‘{“ltqo.‘_\’wm

lann ontrddgedthag odraus i e e dana A}u.Lo.dc oand. dard

WLMM_, Buo. ?_WOL. }Mu::\.:.m o‘ﬁu%& i
faces s, Bd "Nuu’ﬁ., 1830, GSM.MGT.MMM% "M o—‘o—‘dﬂ . ﬁv:’

- - s . ‘g&
Banows okl masan g dasar S SAINL o e LNINYLUEEN 0.'§MLE€. Q. Batten,

. . ! B o,
lorn., Mrdouy ovnk %}MJ%SB. Fogoan (;mz\.mmavu&d\) Aot 06 anxb E‘.Tm of TWAd it
b nctn o k)a-um&h.«(, Koo a~€ Vooar “&m\uﬁ, Lrowon X T, 'E:J.'u—'ﬁt-

,Qo;.;bux, }om\)&i&k canch MEx o‘}\.’*‘f\u\w Yonla omndh a_wa,dw':.\. %%‘LM v.ul‘.v.
afh me.& Tt ol Q:MMW ‘ﬁw Jocrannay M q:!o«h\ Mn ek

roxmhandd of ot Sowrn of Muddlston. o MM AL Lorfronationn.
s A wasd, ~ daanabiy oslasswledgad, do fansly g, K
.imn-v‘nwu,uﬂ& mndh LA Monko Has Aoad Ranfro iAot e-%\’vm.(.rma, ;
o%wwm-w@u Mrctaasons ouad aasagaat On euschaiin roonea of dadd.
e LA Ruaakdimgs aaneoan, ATTnohL Ir Mondh Tourna o-g‘W\wLoU?ue. i
mme%m%smmwM@mWw@ ‘
Jodas 1Knah. owadk Aremaiach Tuns, Bovstanley by Amach boiia WAaan

MR ot Maaadrash aanstradon (H2) g Aoadtandey Ly Rans

of At Jocthasroans. B VWS ooty oot HMM (52) hears; Boakty

Loy tennch o roidh s Renansey abowk Fotliy (#0) Aok, Sorckhuantsy tuyRads-
onih Finssk anad. Ramach Ao oL foTke o{)“N\quLMA— ot Aannsadoa A oandl
iy fws QS Eparste as S Doca-woskinday Loy Hne Ioote sisgieth
s (82) Aek; uSuudonday L s ok LAk Aoanr 0n Kot of . TR Ly

B cmadh mr::wib\-\ Aunary (ia¥) Aty onndy MNokhnenday Ly sads Joter L

ns. Ranancbnech amdh ety ot (191) feek B Loy o Jnonbenn of Mosy




X

A

'1.. .
4
A

J

[}
[}
L)

L» ])(Gl"‘/

< COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

- LAND COURT
In the Matter of the Petition of Inhabvltants of the Town of Mlddleton

nurmbered 23723, after consideration; the Court doth adjudge and decree that said

Inhabitants of the Town of Middleton
a municlpal corporation located in

e . #n the County of Bssex and Commonwealth of

Massachusetts . RrRHE

1s the owner in fee simple

M ddleton I

j 1 of land situate in
of that certain parcel of lan and Commonwealth of Massachusetts, bounded

in the County of 8
and described as follows:

Northerly by Lake Street one hundred twenty-nine and 83/100
e - ’ (129.83} feet; ’
Northeasterly by the junction of sald Lake Strest and Squth

Maln sStreet msasuring on the southwesterly curving
line thereof eighty-seven and 75/100 (87.75)

i feot; . .
Rasterly by the westerly line of South Maln Street one hundred
. fifty-one and §1/100 (151.41) feet; '
Southerly. . : ninety-two (92) feet, and ' '
Easterly forty-four and 95/100 (i4l{.95) feet by land now
- .or formerly of Perry F. Lohnes et al; and

Southerly .one hundred nineteen and 99/100 (119,99) feet,
Southwesterly one hundred two and 41/100 (102.41) feet, and
Westerly one hundred eighty-four and 76/100 {18l.76)

feet by land now or formerly of the Town of

Hiddleton.

All of said boundaries are determined by the
Court to bé located as shown upon plan numbered 237234, which will be
filed with the orlglnal certificate of title issued on this decree, the
same being ccmplled from & plan drawn by Robert W.Bixby, C. E., dated
“June 9, 1952, and edditional data on file in the YLand Ragistration Office,
all as modiried and approved by the Court. N el # a4



The land hereby registered is subject
to the flow of a natural water course runuing through the same and
gshown on sald plan as & brook.

1]

w2 23723



=~ @nd the Court doth adjudge and decree that said land be brought under the operation and provisions
of Chapter 185 of the General Laws, and that the title of said

Inhabitants of the Town of Middleton

to said land be confirmed and registered, subject, however, to any of the encumbrances mentioned in Sec-
tion forty-six of said Chapter which may be subsisting; and subject also as aforesaid.

Witness, JOHN E. FENTON, Esquire, Judge of the Land Court at Boston, in the County of Suffeik,

the twenty-fifth day of April , in the year nineteen
hundred and sixty=one , at ten o'clock and 30  minutes in the forencon.
Attest with the Seal of said Court. MARGARET M. DALY

[SEAL] ° Recorder.

A TRUE COPY. Attest with the Seal of said Court, 2?)‘ L 7‘“‘” 2. £

Recorder.



AW NI Sy

. ,\ ODENREE ZU‘\E

NO, 23723  amo
. Inhabitants of the Town
of Jliddleton

PETITIONER

COFPY OF DECREE OF REGISTRATION.

Dated April 25, 1961

Address of Owner

Town Hall,
¥iddleton, Hass.

Jomes J. Gaffney, Town Counsel,
73 Tremont St.,
Hoston, Mases.

£SSEX SOUTH REGISTRY DISTRICT.

MAY 1 11881

RECEIVED_Z/_0'CLOCK e _Gwm

NOEEDBN CERTIFICATE 30 %9 A
REG - ‘RATION BK../ 309G _Sd¥ 7L

e D-My. &M-7-60-92B452

Owners pupiicate Certificate mailed to

Ay Xl by

:



I

e e————

PLAN OF LAND IN MIDDLETON
Robert W. Bixby, c., E.
June 9, 1952

¥

oty Regintry
g‘*%w W W61 ‘a%
- REC D FILED:
With cmirxcstemo..ﬁ.é%.féimwm

e b o
| 0.
A 12 )

i %
) \

A%

=\ %

B s 70 B¢ 36" W
3 3\\ AN BE 9200 |
g\ . e e 88,

NIYW HLNOS

.,m:.‘- gsl porry F. Lotnes ot a7/ 7/
) Nm""’l sl F
\ o Middlaroy =2 W ~gee
N e
\ \ NTER OF BACH
\\\\P.LEASANT v
VA :
- . K _“{_ 0 8.
- Cop 2
LAND REGISTRATIO.
e July 10, 19
Scale, of this plan 40 fe
0 C. M. Anderson, Enghnee.
RIL e ——— I

U . I B




Nore.

BEARNGCS FMery STATL

Aeauway Lavour

L2 AcRES 2




